CONTRA

COSTA

COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association
AGENDA

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
October 25, 2017 The Willows Office Park
9:00 am. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California
THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
1.  Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Accept comments from the public.
3. Approve minutes from the August 23 and September 13, 2017 meetings.

CLOSED SESSION

4.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code Section 54957.6)

Agency designated representatives:
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer
Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Employee Organization: AFSCME, Local 2700
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions

5. The Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) to confer
with legal counsel regarding pending litigation:

Marianne Irvin v. CCCERA, et al., Court of Appeal, Case No.: A149642

OPEN SESSION

6.  Presentation of classification and total compensation reports.

7. Consider and take possible action concerning the SACRS legislative proposal to be voted on
at the November 2017 SACRS Conference.

8.  Consider and take possible action on Board meeting schedule for 2018.

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




9.

10.

Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:
Trustees’ Roundtable, CALAPRS, October 27, 2017, San Jose, CA.
b. Legislative Conference, NCPERS, January 28-30, 2018, Washington, DC.

a.

Miscellaneous
a. Staff Report
b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




Meeting Date
10/25/17
Agenda ltem

CONTRA #3
COSTA .
COUNTY
Employees' Retirement Association
MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
August 23, 2017 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

Present: Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David
MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles
and Russell Watts

Absent: None

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer;

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; Anne Sommers,
Admin/HR Manager; and Colin Bishop, Member Services Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Ed Hoffman Verus Consulting

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Youngman led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the June 21, 2017 meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon,
Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts).

CLOSED SESSION
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1).

The Board moved into open session.

4. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1).

Kroll was present for subsequent discussion and voting.



S.

Page 2
August 23, 2017
Review of total portfolio performance for period ending June 30, 2017

Hoffman reviewed the overall market and the market drivers for the second quarter. He also discussed
wage growth and unemployment.

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

10.

Hoffman reviewed CCCERA’s investment performance for the period ending June 30, 2017 noting the
ending market value of the total fund portfolio is $7,872,495,171. He also reviewed the total fund asset
allocation vs. the long term target policy. He reported the total fund gross of fees was 3.2% compared
to the policy index of 2.9% for the quarter and total fund gross of fees was 6.9% compared to the
policy index of 6.8% year to date. He noted the growth portfolio, the risk diversifying portfolio and
the liquidity portfolio have all outperformed. He reviewed the total fund risk analysis for 5 years
stating the annualized return was 9.79% with a standard deviation of 4.60%. He noted these numbers
were better than expected. He also reviewed the performance of individual funds as well as their fees.

Review of portfolio rebalancing report

Price reported this is the first time a rebalancing has been done under the new FFP portfolio
construction. He reviewed employer pre-payments, manager withdrawals, manager terminations and
where the proceeds were invested. He noted that $500 million of the proceeds were used to refresh the
liquidity program. He reviewed the changes in market values due to the rebalancing and the Phase 2b
asset allocation targets as of August 1, 2017 noting the total fund balance is now over $8 billion
dollars. He stated there was a large deployment to short term fixed income which went smoothly.

Review of Liquidity Reports from June and July 2017

Price reported the June and July benefit payments were completed without a hitch noting he will not be
making a change to the model until there has been a full 12 months of experience.

Consider and take possible action to revise Attachment B of the Board of Retirement Resolution
2017-3 to provide Health and Dental Coverage Monthly Premium Subsidy for unrepresented
emplovees effective January 1, 2018

Dunn reported this item will align the health, dental and vision benefits of unrepresented employees
with the employees of AFSCME Local 2700 for 2018.

It was M/S/C to revise Attachment B of the Board of Retirement Resolution 2017-3 to align
unrepresented and represented employees benefits by providing Health and Dental Coverage Monthly
Premium Subsidy for unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2018. (Yes:
Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Presentation of Year to Date 2017 CCCERA budget vs. actual expenditures report

Gudino presented the mid-year budget versus actual expenditures noting the 2017 administrative
expenditures are trending annually at $8.5 million which is 0.10% of the Actuarial Accrued Liability
and well under the CERL limit.

Miscellaneous
(a) Staff Report —

Strohl reported the November 21, 2017 Board meeting will be offsite at the Pleasant Hill
Community Center; Interviews for the Investment Legal Counsel have been held and we are in



Page 3
August 23, 2017

the process of evaluating the firms; ICON has begun working on the review of our pension
system data; and the food drive supporting the Food Bank of Solano and Contra Costa Counties is
ending at the end of September.

She introduced Colin Bishop, the new Member Services Manager.

Price reported on the following investment manager personnel changes noting none of them are
critical to CCCERA’s portfolio: 1) The Co-CEO of DFA announced he will be retiring at the end
of September and the Co-CIO will be stepping into the position; the head of investment
management at William Blair has resigned from the firm; the head of distressed debt at Angelo
Gordon has left the firm; and a CMBS acquisition member at Torchlight has left the firm.

Dunn reported an email was sent to the Trustees that participate in Social Security notifying them
that the referendum vote for Social Security is November 16 and an educational workshop will be
held on August 29 from 10-12 in the Board Room. Strohl noted SACRS is also on November 16
and absentee ballots will be available upon request.

Gudino reported invoices have been sent to employers for the 2015 GASB 68 report and the

invoices for the 2016 GASB 68 report will be going out soon. Strohl acknowledged Gudino for
his presentation on the CAFR at the All Staff Meeting.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
Hoffman reported on the upcoming Client Summit that Verus is hosting.
(¢) Trustees’ comments —

Telles asked if anyone attended the NASRA Conference in August. Strohl stated she attended and
that it was good conference. The conference will be in San Diego next year.

Watts reported former Trustee Debora Allen will be speaking at the Contra Costa Taxpayers
Association Board of Directors meeting at Denny’s on Friday morning from 7:45 to 9:00.

Rodrigues reported he has received several phone calls from law enforcement members regarding
the contribution rate increase in July and asked if notifications could be sent out. Strohl stated
employers typically send out the notices on rates but will see if there is something CCCERA can
do.

Pigeon reported he also had several calls regarding the contribution rate increases and sent a
memo explaining the increases to his members.

Andersen stated she will talk to David Twa about departments sending notices to employees
regarding contribution rate increases.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Todd Smithey, Chairman David MacDonald, Secretary



Meeting Date
10/25/17
Agenda Item

CONTRA #3
COSTA
COUNTY
Employees’ Retirement Association
MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
September 13, 2017 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

Present: Candace Andersen, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David MacDonald, John
Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Belinda Zhu
(Deputy Treasurer, present and voting in Treasurer Russell Watts’ absence)

Absent: Scott Gordon

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer;
Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry
Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager; and Colin
Bishop, Member Services Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
John Monroe Segal Consulting

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Levy led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Telles was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

2. Accept comments from the public

Vince Wells, President of Firefighters Local 1230, asked that the base pay only policy for PEPRA
members be revisited by the Board.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 12, 2017 meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe,
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

Rodrigues was present for subsequent discussion and voting.
4. Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the September 13, 2017 meeting. Holcombe asked
about effective retirement dates that are a year old on Item #4. Hoppe stated the dates are retroactive
to the effective date on the application once their options are turned in.



Page 2
September 13, 2017

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Holcombe also asked about a death dating back to April. Hoppe stated it sometimes takes the family
a while to submit a certified death certificate to CCCERA. Telles asked if proof of life letters have
been sent out. Hoppe stated CCCERA is working on the process. (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe,
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

CLOSED SESSION
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.

The Board moved into open session.

5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendations and grant the following disability
benefits:

a. Marilyn Gouvaia — Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald,
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

b. Frank Gomez — Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips,
Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

c. Angela Parga — Non-Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald,
Phillips, Rodrigues and Zhu. No: Smithey and Telles)

6. Consider and take possible action to accept the GASB 68 report from Segal Consulting

Monroe reviewed the results of the GASB 68 report noting the report is solely for employers to use in
their financial statements. He stated one of the key items they calculate is the Net Pension Liability
(NPL) which is similar to the unfunded actuarial accrued liability but on a market value basis. The
total NPL decreased from $1.51 billion as of December 31, 2015 to $1.40 billion as of December 31,
2016. He stated this is allocated to each employer based on payroll and reported on each of their
balance sheets as a liability.

He reported GASB 82 affects some of the reporting in GASB 68. When an employer subvents a
member contribution it is now reported as a member contribution and when a member subvents an
employer contribution it is now reported as an employer contribution. Strohl noted this change is only
for reporting.

Gudino noted GASB 68 is a service provided for the employers and is not a requirement of the Plan.

It was M/S/C to accept the GASB 68 report from Segal Consulting. (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe,
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

7. Consider and take possible action regarding non-service connected disability retirement
allowance of deceased member Paul Crouch

Hoppe reported Paul Crouch was an active member who passed away and had a Death During Active
Service Form on file with CCCERA. Based on that election, CCCERA filed a non-service connected
disability on his behalf, noting that Mr. Crouch met the medical requirements of permanent disability
for a Tier 1 member.

Hoppe noted this would be a non-service connected disability retirement and Mr. Crouch elected an
Optional Settlement 2 allowance prior to his death. His spouse will receive a 100% continuance.

It was M/S/C to: 1) Find that the member was permanently unable to engage in his job duties and
grant a non-service connected disability retirement, effective March 23, 2017; and 2) Grant the
member’s beneficiary (member’s spouse) benefits pursuant to Government Code Section 31762



Page 3
September 13, 2017

(Optional Settlement 2 allowance for the life of the named beneficiary). (Yes: Andersen, Gordon,
Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

8. Presentation of Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report

Hoppe reported there were 16 disability retirement applications accepted during the first 6 months of
2017; 11 were service connected and 5 were non-service connected. He reviewed a breakdown of the
total number of applications filed by the employers and by County department. He reviewed a
breakdown of the type of injury being reported noting musculoskeletal is the most common type.

Andersen was no longer present

He reported 2 disability retirement applications have been accepted since June 30.

9. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:

a.

e.
f.

It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the 2017 Fall Conference, CII,
September 13-15, 2017, San Diego, CA. (Yes: Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon,
Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Roundtable for Consultants
& Institutional Investors, Institutional Investor, October 4-6, 2017, Chicago, IL. (Yes: Holcombe,
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the 2017 Fall Conference,
CRCEA, October 23-25, 2017, Emeryville, CA. (Yes: Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips,
Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 8 Board members at the 315 Annual Northern CA
Public Retirement Seminar, Public Retirement Journal, October 26, 2017. (Yes: Holcombe,
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Zhu)

No action was taken on this item.

No action was taken on this item.

10. Miscellaneous

(a)

(b)

(©)

Staff Report —

Strohl reported our new Employer Handbook has been finalized; and, we are continuing on the
second month of the food drive which will run through the end of September.

Price reported the StepStone Group will be presenting a private equity pacing report at the next
meeting.

Gudino reported bills have been sent to the employer’s for the 2016 GASB 68 fees noting most of
the employers have provided payment.

Outside Professionals’ Report -
None
Trustees’ comments —

Phillips reported on his takeaways from the Verus Client Conference that was also attended by
Kroll, Smithey, Watts and Strohl.



Page 4
September 13, 2017

Kroll also commented on the Verus Client Conference noting everything went well from check-in
to the end of the conference.

MacDonald reported he attended the CALAPRS Principals of Pension Management Course and
felt it was a fantastic course. He noted Price presented and did a very good job. He and Smithey
attended the Public Funds Forum and felt it was outstanding.

He asked for an update on cybersecurity. Strohl stated she will provide an update.

Telles reported he attended the NCPERS Public Pension Funding Forum and it was a good

conference. He stated we should look at negotiating better fees especially when investing in fund
of funds.

Pigeon asked that the meeting be adjourned sending thoughts, concerns and support to those
suffering from the effects of Hurricane Harvey and Irma.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting sending thoughts, concerns and support to those suffering from the
effects of Hurricane Harvey and Irma. (Yes: Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey,
Telles and Zhu)

Todd Smithey, Chairman David MacDonald, Secretary



Meeting Date
10/25/17

CONTRA
COSTA ‘ ‘ ‘ ERA Agenda Item
COUNTY =1\ #6

Employees’ Retirement Association

MEMORANDUM

Date: October 25, 2017

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Presentation of classification and total compensation reports
Background

On April 12, 2017 the Board of Retirement approved the Memorandum of Understanding
between CCCERA and United Clerical, Technical & Specialized Employees (AFSCME), Local
2700 for the period of January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018. Under Section 5.1.C. and
5.1.D of the Memorandum of Understanding provided the following agreement:

5.1 General Wages

C. AFSCME agrees to participate in a classification and compensation study that is
to be concluded approximately 2-3 months following ratification. The union may
conduct its own classification and compensation study and present it to the Board
of retirement prior to meeting and conferring regarding the results of CCCERA’s
classification and compensation study.

D. Once the study is concluded, the parties will meet and confer within 45 days
regarding implementation of the results of that class/comp study. It is understood
that the MOU will be reopened for this purpose.

Next Steps
The attached classification and total compensation reports will be presented by Koff and
Associates. CCCERA has been notified that AFSCME intends on presenting a compensation

report to the Board following Koff and Associates presentation.

CCCERA and AFSCME will meet and confer regarding the implementation of the results of the
reports within 45 days. Therefore, no action is needed at this time.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org



September 25, 2017

Classification Study-
Represented Classifications
Final Report

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement
Association

KOFF & ASSOCIATES

Katie Kaneko
President

2835 Seventh Street
Berkeley, CA 94710
www.KoffAssociates.com

kkaneko@koffassociates.com
Tel: 510.658.5633
Fax: 510.652.5633




} =Koff & Associates

e

8 Hurnan Hesources Conaulting Since 1984

September 25, 2017

Christina Dunn

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

Dear Christina,

Koff & Associates is pleased to present the final classification report for the study of represented
positions at CCCERA. Volume | documents the classification study process and provides
recommendations for the classification plan, allocations of individual positions for all represented
CCCERA employees, and class specifications. Volume 1l, to be sent under separate cover,
documents the market compensation survey, findings, and recommendations.

This first volume incorporates a summary of the study’s multi-step process, which included
results of written Position Description Questionnaires, interviews with employees and
management, and employee review and comments in the form of draft class descriptions, and
class allocation recommendations.

We would like to thank you for your assistance and cooperation without which this study could
not have been brought to its successful completion.

We will be glad to answer any questions or clarify any points as you are implementing the findings
and recommendations. It was a pleasure working with you and we look forward to future
opportunities to provide you with professional assistance.

Very truly yours,

1

Katie Kaneko
President

2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | www .KoffAssociates.com



IRADSIe i 4 1 3 = G101 H |

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

LIST OF TABLES wcis.v.cscsi 5r 3568 80mevovoed s s s e w8 s 65585 53 50 505 = ormms o e snmms ame e e mnseen 1
APPENDICES ... 500 euee i iioeo oo iomvonensne gomens ettt e e e e et e tae e te e e te e e e sateeanes 1
EXECUTIVE SUMMOINY (oo, 2
Background......... T O e T 2
Classification Study Goals...........c......... BB et 0 e R BB 6 B e e AR SA AR 2 § 48 8T e BB ERS 2
Classification Study Process........ccoo.......... e et e e ——ee e e e ————eee et s aat——n———reee ettt e e eeeeans 3
ClasSIfICAION CONCEPTS ...t 3
POSItIoNSs Vs, ClaSSIICAHONS. .....c.eiiiiieeieeceeee e, 3
The Relationship Between Classification and Compensation .......cooeeeeeeevennn... 4
The Purpose of Having a Classification PION ...........cocoooeeeeee oo, 4
Classification DESCIIDHONS ..o e 5
Fair LAbon STONAQIAS ACH .o ... g brisrssesssns s 55 586k s Sammenssnanaan stomumons sesesnsms 7
Classification Findings and Recommendations .........ccoveeeeeeveennn. e 2
Classification Structure and Allocation FACTONS ......oo.eweeeeeeeeeeeeee oo, 9
Classification Allocation Recommendations.............o.eeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee . 15
TIHE CRONGE ..ottt e, 15
RECIOSSITICANON int:seisuinsaiisnee s s iussineseinssemreressosemnssssonssesssss sxans eses st srmssesssss s tasas asssssoss 16
Classification EMINGHON .......vieiceecceeeeeee e, 16



Classification Study - Final Report

Contfra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

AR U R W e e T e s e T A T A e

Appendix I: Recommended Position Allocations
Appendix Il: New Classification Descriptions



B

¥

Retirement Association

Contra Costa County Employees

-« A R e

[}

Background

In June 2017, CCCERA contracted with Koff & Associates (K&A) to conduct a classification and
total compensation study for CCCERA’s represented classifications. All classification and
compensation findings, recommendations, and options for implementations are in Volumes | and
If of this report.

This classification review process was precipitated by:

» The concern of the Board of Directors that employees should be recognized for the level
and scope of work performed and that they are paid on a fair and competitive basis that
allows CCCERA to recruit and retain a high-quality staff;

» To ensure that class descriptions reflect current programs, responsibilities, and
technology;

» The desire to have a compensation plan that can meet the needs of CCCERA; and

» The desire to ensure that internal relationships of salaries are based upon objective, non-
quantitative evaluation factors, resulting in equity across CCCERA.

The goal of the classification and compensation study is to assist CCCERA in developing a
competitive pay and benefit structure, which is based upon market data to ensure that the plan
is fiscally responsible, and that meets the needs of the CCCERA with regards to recruitment and
retention of qualified staff.

The goals and objectives of the classification portion of the study were to:

» Obtain detailed information regarding each position through a variety of techniques,
including written Position Description Questionnaires (PDQs) and interviews with
employees and management;

» Prepare an updated classification plan, including recommended class descriptions and
position allocations that recognizes the scope and level of the various classes and
positions, and is perceived equitable by management and employees alike;

» Provide class descriptions and other documentation that includes information required
for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and appropriate
qualifications, including knowledge, skills, and other requirements that are job-related
and meet other legal guidelines; and

» Provide sufficient documentation to allow CCCERA to maintain the classification system
on a regular basis.



es Retirement Association

L

onira Cosra County Employ

The classification study procedures were as follows:

> An initial meeting was held with CCCERA management to clarify study scope, objectives,
processes, and deliverables.

» Orientation meetings were held to which all employees were invited, to meet consultant
staff involved with the project, clarify study objectives and procedures, answer questions,
and distribute the PDQs.

> After the PDQs were completed by employees and reviewed by management and
consultant staff, interviews were conducted with all employees and management.

> Following the analysis of the classification information gathered, draft class concepts,
specifications, and position allocations were developed for management and employee
review,

> After resolution of issues, wherever possible, including additional contacts with
employees and management to gain details and clarification, appropriate modifications
were made to the draft specifications and allocations and this final report was prepared.

Positions vs. Classifications

“Position” and “Classification” are two terms that are often used interchangeably, but have very
different meanings. As used in this report:

> Anposition is an assigned group of duties and responsibilities performed by one person. A
position can be full-time, part-time, regular or temporary, filled or vacant. Often the word
“job” is used in place of the word “position.”

> A classification or class may contain only one position or may consist of a number of
positions. When you have several positions assigned to one class, it means that the same
title is appropriate for each position; that the scope, level, duties, and responsibilities of
each position assigned to the class are sufficiently similar (but not identical) that the same
core knowledge, skills, abilities, and other requirements are appropriate for all positions,
and that the same salary range is equitable for all positions in the class.

The description of a position often appears as a working desk manual, going into detail regarding
work process steps, while a class description emphasizes the general scope and level of
responsibilities, plus the knowledge, skills, abilities, and other requirements for successful
performance.



i el

Conira Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

B € N B 8 1 b e S KR TR e ol R Al e b - e e

When positions are classified, the focus is on assigned job duties and the job related
requirements for successful performance, not on individual employee capabilities or amount of
work performed. Positions are thus evaluated and classified on the basis of such factors as
knowledge, skills, and abilities required to perform the work, the complexity of the work, the
authority delegated to make decisions and take action, the responsibility for the work of others
and/or for budget expenditures, contacts with others (both inside and outside of the
organization), and the impact of the position on the organization and working conditions.

The Relaiionship Between Classification and Compensation

Classification and the description of the work and the requirements to perform the work are
separate and distinct from determining the worth of that work in the labor market and to the
organization. While recommending the appropriate compensation for the work of a class
depends upon an understanding of what that work is and what it requires (as noted above),
compensation levels are often influenced by two factors:

» The external labor market; and
> Internal relationships within the organization.

Compensation findings and recommendations for CCCERA are covered in Volume Il of this report.

The Purpose of Having a Classification Plan

A position classification plan provides an appropriate basis for making a variety of human
resources decisions such as the:
> Development of job-related recruitment and selection procedures;
Clear and objective appraisal of employee performance;
Development of training plans and succession planning;
Design of an equitable and competitive salary structure;
Organizational development and the management of change; and

YV V V

» Provision of an equitable basis for discipline and other employee actions.

In addition to providing this basis for various human resources management and process
decisions, a position classification plan can also effectively support systems of administrative and
fiscal control. Grouping of positions into an orderly classification system supports planning,
budget analysis and preparation, and various other administrative functions.

Within a position classification plan, job classifications can either be broad (containing a number
of positions) or narrow (emphasizing individual job characteristics). Broad job classifications are
indicated when:

» Employees can be hired with a broad spectrum of knowledge, skill, and/or academic
preparation and can readily learn the details of CCCERA, the department, and the position
on-the-job; or



.

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

O A A LA L A N A A R T SO o faoweee e B T T T e

» There is a need for flexibility of the assignment within a department or an organization

due to changing programs, technologies, or workload.

Individualized job classifications are indicated when:

» There is an immediate need to recruit for specialty knowledge and skills;

» There is a minimum of time or capability for on-the-job training; or

» There is an organizational need to provide for specific job recognition and to highlight the
differences between jobs.

Most classification plans are a combination of these two sets of factors and we have chosen the
middle ground in this study as being most practicable in CCCERA’s changing environment and
service delivery expectations, as well as being in line with CCCERA’s strategic plan. This approach
resulted in recommendations to retitle classifications to more accurately reflect current
responsibilities or use more contemporary titles (e.g. Retirement Member Services Technician to
Retirement Services Technician), or to reclassify certain individuals into existing or entirely new
classifications that more accurately reflect current responsibilities (e.g. Retirement Counselor IlI
to Senior Retirement Counselor). Detailed allocation recommendations are found in Appendix |
of the report.

Classification Descriptions

In developing the new and revised classification descriptions for represented positions, the basic
concepts outlined in the previous pages were utilized. The recommended class descriptions are
included in Appendix Il of this report.

As mentioned earlier, the class descriptions are based upon the information from the written
PDQs completed by each employee, the individual job audit interviews (if required), and from
information provided by employees and managers during the review processes. These
descriptions provide:

> A written summary documenting the work performed and/or proposed by the
incumbents of these classifications;

» Distinctions among the classes; and

» Documentation of requirements and qualifications to assist in the recruitment and
selection process.

Just as there is a difference between a position and a class, there is also a difference between a
position description and a class description. A position description, often known as a “desk
manual”, generally lists each duty an employee performs and may also have information about
how to perform that duty. A class description normally reflects severa! positions and is a
summary document that does not list each duty performed by every employee. The class
description, which is intended to be broader, more general and informational, is intended to
indicate the general scope and level of responsibility and requirements of the class, not detail-
specific position responsibilities.



o~

avinhis Enanlaviasns Dalliamvamnd Ao oSl o
Lounty Empiocyees Relirement AsSsocCl ation

The sections of each class description are as follows:

Title: This should be brief and descriptive of the class and consistent with other titles in the
classification plan and the occupational area.

» The title of a classification is normally used for organization, classification, and
compensation purposes within CCCERA. Often working titles are used within a
department to differentiate an individual. All positions have a similar level of scope and
responsibility; however, the working titles may give assurance to a member of the public
that they are dealing with an appropriate individual. Working titles should be authorized
by Human Resources to ensure consistency within CCCERA and across departmental lines.

Definition: This provides a capsule description of the job and should give an indication of the type
of supervision received, the scope and level of the work and any unusual or unique factors. The
phrase “performs related work as required” is not meant to unfairly expand the scope of the
work performed, but to acknowledge that jobs change and that not all duties are included in the
class specification.

Supervision Received and Exercised: This section specifies which class or classes provide
supervision to the class being described and the type and level of work direction or supervision
provided to this class. The section also specifies what type and level of work direction or
supervision the class provides to other classes. This assists the reader in defining where the class
“fits” in the organization and alludes to possible career advancement opportunities.

Class Characteristics: This can be considered the “editorial” section of the specification, slightly
expanding the Definition, clarifying the most important aspects of the class and distinguishing
this class from the next higher-level in a class series or from a similar class in a different
occupational series.

Examples of Typical Job Functions: This section provides a list of the major and typical duties,
intended to define the scope and level of the class and to support the Qualifications, including
Knowledge and Skills. This list is meant to be illustrative only. It should be emphasized that the
description is a summary document, and that duties change depending upon program
requirements, technology, and organizational needs.

Qualifications: This element of the description has several sections:

> Alisting of the job-related knowledge and skills required to successfully perform the work.
They must be related to the duties and responsibilities of the work and capable of being
validated under the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s Uniform Guidelines on
Selection Procedures. Knowledge (intellectual comprehension) and Abilities (acquired
proficiency) should be sufficiently detailed to provide the basis for selection of qualified
employees.



L R E IS 3
&

R &

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

L WA 4 AR R S B I T T LT T m— e N s 5 N e

A listing of educational and experience requirements that outline minimum and
alternative ways of gaining the knowledge and abilities required for entrance into the
selection process. These elements are used as the basic screening technique for job
applicants.

> Licenses and/or certifications identify those specifically required in order to perform the
work. These certifications are often required by an agency higher than CCCERA (i.e., the
State), and can therefore be appropriately included as requirements.

Physical Demands: This section identifies the basic physical abilities required for performance of
the work. These are not presented in great detail (although they are more specifically covered
for documentation purposes in the PDQs) but are designed to indicate the type of pre-
employment physical examination (lifting requirements and other unusual characteristics are
included, such as “finger dexterity needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer
keyboard”) and to provide an initial basis for determining reasonable accommodation for ADA
purposes.

Working Conditions: These can describe certain outside influences and circumstances under
which a job is performed; they give employees or job applicants an idea of certain risks involved
in the job and what type of protective gear may be necessary to perform the job. Examples are
loud noise levels, cold and/or hot temperatures, vibration, confining workspace, chemicals,
mechanical and/or electrical hazards, and other job conditions.

= o L i € iy 7 il A e
Fair Labor Standards Aci

One of the major components of the job analysis and classification review is the determination
of each classification’s appropriate Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) status, i.e., exempt vs. non-
exempt from the FLSA overtime rules and regulations.

As we review position description questionnaires and notes from the interviews, we analyze each
classification’s essential functions to determine FLSA status. There are three leveis for the
determination of the appropriate FLSA status that are utilized and on which we base our
recommendations. Below are the steps used for the determination of Exempt FLSA status.

Salary Basis Test: The incumbents in a classification are paid at least $455 per week ($23,660 per
year), not subject to reduction due to variations in quantity/quality of work performed.

Exemption Applicability: The incumbents in a classification perform any of the following types of
jobs:
> Executive: Employee whose primary duty is to manage the business or a recognized
department/entity and who customarily directs the work of two or more employees. This
also includes individuals who hire, fire, or make recommendations that carry particular
weight regarding employment status. Examples: executive, director, owner, manager,
supervisor.
» Administrative: Employee whose primary activities are performing office work or non-

manual work on matters of significance relating to the management or business
7



8 .

Association

A N L R S - N e e R s N * R A

operations of the firm or its customers and which require the exercise of discretion and
independent judgment. Examples: coordinator, administrator, analyst, accountant.
Professional: Employee who primarily performs work requiring advanced
knowledge/education and which includes consistent exercise of discretion and
independent judgment. The advanced knowledge must be in a field of science or learning
acquired in a prolonged course of specialized intellectual instruction. Examples: attorney,
physician, statistician, architect, biologist, pharmacist, engineer, teacher.

Computer professional: Employee who primarily performs work as a computer systems
analyst, programmer, software engineer or similarly skilled work in the computer field
performing a) application of systems analysis techniques and procedures, including
consulting with users to determine hardware, software, or system functional
specifications; b) design, development, documentation, analysis, creation, testing, or
modification of computer systems or programs, including prototypes, based on and
related to user or system design specification; or c) design, documentation, testing,
creation or modification of computer programs based on and related to user or system
design specifications; or a combination of the duties described above, the performance
of which requires the same level of skills. Examples: system analyst, database analyst,
network architect, software engineer, programmer.

Job Analysis: A thorough job analysis of the job duties must be performed to determine exempt
status. An exempt position must pass both the salary basis and duties tests. The job analysis
should include:

>

YV V

Review of the minimum qualifications established for the job;

Review of prior class descriptions, questionnaires, and related documentation;
Confirmation of duty accuracy with management; and

Review and analysis of workflow, organizational relationships, policies, and other
available organizational data.

Non-exempt classifications work within detailed and well-defined sets of rules and regulations,
policies, procedures, and practices that must be followed when making decisions. Although the
knowledge base required to perform the work may be significant, the framework within which
incumbents’ work is fairly restrictive and finite. (Please note that FLSA does not allow for the
consideration of workload and scheduling when it comes to exemption status).

Finally, often times a classification performs both non-exempt and exempt duties, so we analyze
time spent on each type of duties. If a classification performs mostly non-exempt duties (i.e.
more than 50% of his or her time), then the classification would be considered non-exempt.



il g

T

WrLs

' Daliramesmnt Acemnsimadl
Retirement Association

Conira Costa County Employees

R 0 A A A0 805 £ 700 RN 8 SR P08 1T b e S A 2 6 0 48 8 0 AR SR A

&
P

Classification Struciure and Allocaiion Factiors

The proposed classification plan provides CCCERA with a systematic classification structure based
on the interrelationship between duties performed, the nature and level of responsibilities, and
other work-related requirements of the jobs.

A classification plan is not a stable, unchanging entity. Classification plans may be updated and
revised by conducting classification studies that are organizational wide (review of the all
classifications and positions) or position-specific. The methodology used for both types of studies
is the same, as outlined above.

For either type of study, when identifying appropriate placement of new and/or realigned
positions within the classification structure, there are general allocation factors to consider. By
analyzing these factors, CCCERA will be able to change and grow the organization while
maintaining the classification plan.

1. Type and Level of Knowledge and Skill Required

This factor defines the level of job knowledge and skill, including those attained by formal
education, technical training, on-the job experience, and required certification or professional
registration. The varying levels are as follows:

A. The entry-level into any occupational field

This entry-level knowledge may be attained by obtaining a high school diploma,
completing specific technical course work, or obtaining a four-year or advanced college
or university degree. Little to no experience is required.

B. The experienced or journey-level (fully competent-level) in any occupational field

This knowledge and skill level recognizes a class that is expected to perform the day-to-
day functions of the work independently, but with guidelines {written or oral) and
supervisory assistance available. This level of knowledge is sufficient to provide on-the-
job instruction to a fellow employee or an assistant when functioning in a lead capacity.
Certifications may be required for demonstrating possession of the required knowledge
and skills.

C. The advanced level in any occupational field

This knowledge and skill level is applied in situations where an employee is required to
perform or deal with virtually any job situation that may be encountered. Guidelines may
be limited and creative problem solving may be involved. Supervisory knowledge and
skills are considered in a separate factor and should not influence any assessment of this
factor.



Rt BT LT

Contra Costa County Employees’ Refirement Association

2. Supervisory/Management Responsibility

This factor defines the staff and/or program management responsibility, including short and
long-range planning, budget development and administration, resource allocation, policy and
procedure development, and supervision and direction of staff.

A. No ongoing direction of staff

The employee is responsible for the performance of his or her own work and may provide
side-by-side instruction to a co-worker.

B. Lead direction of staff or program coordination

The employee plans, assigns, directs, and reviews the work of staff performing similar
work to that performed by the employee on a day-to-day basis. Training in work
procedures is normally involved. If staff direction is not involved, the employee must
have responsibility for independently coordinating one or more programs or projects on
a regular basis.

C. Fullfirst-line supervisor

The employee performs the supervisory duties listed above, and, in addition, makes
effective recommendation and/or carries out selection, performance evaluation, and
disciplinary procedures. If staff supervision is not involved, the employee must have
programmatic responsibility, including development and implementing goals, objectives,
policies and procedures, and budget development and administration.

D. Manager

The employee is considered management, often supervising through subordinate levels
of supervision. In addition to the responsibilities outlined above, responsibilities include
allocating staff and budget resources among competing demands and performing
significant program and service delivery planning and evaluation. This level normally
reports to Executive Management.

E. Executive Management

The employee has total administrative responsibility for CCCERA and reports to the Board
of Directors.

3. Supervision Received
A. Direct Supervision

Direct supervision is usually received by entry-level employees and trainees, i.e.,
employees who are new to the organization and/or position they are filling. Initially under
close supervision, incumbents learn to apply concepts and work procedures and methods
in assigned area of responsibility to resolve problems of moderate scope and complexity.
Work is usually supervised while in progress and fits an established structure or pattern.
Exceptions or changes in procedures are explained in detail as they arise. As experience

10



eeify G4 ey
< [ ER RS Sl S

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

is gained, assignments become more varied and are performed with greater
independence.

B. General Supervision

General supervision is usually received by the experienced and journey-level employees,
i.e., employees who have been in a position for a period of time and have had the
opportunity to be trained and learn most, if not all, duties and responsibilities of the
assigned classification. Incumbents are cross-trained to perform the full range of
technical work in all of the areas of assignment.

At the experienced-level, positions exercise some independent discretion and judgment
in selecting and applying work procedures and methods. Assighments and objectives are
set for the employee and established work methods are followed. Incumbents have some
flexibility in the selection of steps and timing of work processes.

Journey-level positions receive only occasional instruction or assistance as new or unusual
situations arise and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of assigned
projects, programs, and team(s). Assignments are given with general guidelines and
incumbents are responsible for establishing objectives, timelines, and methods to deliver
work products.  Work is typically reviewed upon completion for soundness,
appropriateness, and conformity to policy and requirements, and the methodology used
in arriving at the end results are not reviewed in detail.

C. General Direction

General direction is usually received by senior level or management positions. Work
assignments are typically given as broad, conceptual ideas and directives and incumbents
are accountable for overall results and responsible for developing guidelines, action plans,
and methods to produce deliverables on time and within budget.

D. Administrative and Policy Direction

Administrative direction is usually received by executive management classifications. The
incumbent is accountable for accomplishing CCCERA-wide planning and operational goals
and objectives within legal and general policy and regulatory guidelines. The incumbent
is responsible for the efficient and economical performance of the organization’s
operations.

4. Problem Solving
This factor involves analyzing, evaluating, reasoning, and creative thinking requirements. In a
work environment, not only the breadth and variety of problems are considered, but also

guidelines, such as supervision, policies, procedures, laws, regulations, and standards available
to the employee.

11



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

:

S AR R 8 I

A. Structured problem solving

Employees learn to apply concepts and work procedures and methods in assigned area of
responsibility and to resolve problems and issues that are specific, less complex, and/or
repetitive. Exceptions or changes in procedures are explained in detail as they arise.

B. Independent, guided problem solving

Work situations require making independent decisions among a variety of alternatives;
however, policies, procedures, standards, and regulations and/or management are
available to guide the employee towards problem resolution.

C. Application of discriminating choices

Work situations require independent judgment and decision-making authority when
identifying, evaluating, adapting, and applying appropriate concepts, guidelines,
references, laws, regulations, policies, and procedures to resolve diverse and complex
problems and issues.

D. Creative, evaluative, or critical thinking

The work involves a high-level of problem-solving requiring analysis of unique issues or
increasingly complex problems without precedent and/or structure and formulating,
presenting, and implementing strategies and recommendations for resolution.

5. Authority for Making Decisions and Taking Action

This factor describes the degree to which employees have the freedom to take action within their
job. The variety and frequency of action and decisions, the availability of policies, procedures,
laws, and supervisory or managerial guidance, and the consequence or impact of such decisions
are considered within this factor.

A. Direct, limited work responsibility

The employee is responsible for the successful performance of his or her own work with
little latitude for discretion or decision-making. Work is usually supervised while in
progress and fits an established structure or pattern. Direct supervision is readily
available.

B. Decision-making within guidelines

The employee is responsible for the successful performance of their'own work, but able
to prioritize and determine methods of work performance within general guidelines.
Supervision is available, although the employee is expected to perform independently on
a day-to-day basis. Emergency or unusual situations may occur, but are handled within
procedures and rules. Impact of decisions is normally limited to the work unit, project, or
program to which assigned.

12



i

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

C. Independent action with focus on work achieved

The employee receives assignments in terms of long-term objectives, rather than day-to-
day or weekly timeframes. Broad policies and procedures are provided, but the employee
has latitude for choosing techniques and deploying staff and material resources. Impact
of decisions may have significant program or CCCERA-wide service delivery and/or
budgetary impact.

D. Decisions made within general policy or elected official guidance

The employee is subject only to the policy guidance of elected officials and/or broad
regulatory or legal constraints. The ultimate authority for achieving the goals and
objectives of CCCERA are with this employee.

6. Interaction with Others

This factor includes the nature and purpose of contacts with others, from simple exchanges of
factual information to the negotiation of difficult issues. It also considers with whom the contacts
are made, from co-workers and the public to elected or appointed public officials.

A. Exchange of factual information

The employee is expected to use ordinary business courtesy to exchange factual
information with co-workers and the public. Strained situations may occasionally occur,
but the responsibilities are normally not confrontational.

B. Interpretation and explanation of policies and procedures

The employee is required to interpret policies and procedures, apply and explain them,
and influence the public or others to abide by them. Problems may need to be defined
and clarified and individuals contacted may be upset or unreasonable. Contacts may also
be made with individuals at all levels throughout CCCERA.

C. Influencing individuals or groups

The employee is required to interpret laws, policies, and procedures to individuals who
may be confrontational or to deal with members of professional, business, community,
or other groups or regulatory agencies as a representative of CCCERA.

D. Negotiation with organizations from a position of authority

The employee often deals with the Board of Directors, elected officials, government
agencies, and other outside agencies, and the public to advance and represent the
priorities and interests of CCCERA, provide policy direction, and/or negotiate solutions to
difficult problems.

13



i

Cantra Coacler Coaunntv Emniavasc’ Daliramant Acemeirdlimi
Contra Costa County Employees’ Relirement Association

7. Working Conditions/Physical Demands
This factor includes specific physical, situational, and other factors that influence the employee’s
working situation.

A. Normal office or similar setting

The work is performed in a normal office or similar setting during regular office hours
(occasional overtime may be required, but compensated for). Responsibilities include
meeting standard deadlines, using office and related equipment, lifting materials
weighing up to 25 pounds, and communicating with others in a generally non-stressful
manner.

B. Varied working conditions with some physical or emotional demands

The work is normally performed indoors, but may have some exposure to noise, heat,
weather, or other uncomfortable conditions. Stand-by, call back, or regular overtime may
be required. The employee may have to meet frequent deadlines, work extended hours,
and maintain attention to detail at a computer or other machinery, deal with difficult
people, or regularly perform moderate physical activity.

C. Difficult working conditions and/or physical demands

The work has distinct and regular difficult demands. Shift work (24-7 or rotating) may be
required; there may be exposure to hazardous materials or conditions; the employee may
be subject to regular emergency callback and extended shifts; and/or the work may
require extraordinary physical demands.

Based on the above factors, in the maintenance of the classification plan when an employee is
assigned an additional duty or responsibility and requests a change in classification, it is
reasonable to ask:
» What additional knowledge and skills are required to perform the duty?
» How does one gain this additional knowledge and skills — through extended training,
through a short-term seminar, through on-the-job experience?
» Does this duty or responsibility require new or additional supervisory responsibilities?
» Is there a greater variety of or are there more complex problems that need to be solved
as a result of the new duty?
> Does the employee have to make a greater variety of or more difficult decisions as a result
of this new duty?
» Are the impacts of decisions greater because of this new duty (effects on staff, budget,
CCCERA-wide activities, and/or relations with other agencies)?
> Are guidelines, policies, and/or procedures provided to the employee for the
performance of this new duty?
> Is the employee interacting with internal and external stakeholders’ others more
frequently or for a different purpose as a result of this new assignment?

14



allEc., LERELD

Conira Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

. s - N o . x - ww . e Ay

» Have the working or physical conditions of the job
assignment?

R Ko A R e s

changed as a result of this new

The analysis of the factors outlined above, as well as the answers to these questions, were used
to determine recommended classifications for all CCCERA employees. The factors above will also
help to guide the placement of specific positions to the existing classification structure and/or
revision of entire classification structure in the future.

Classification Allocation Recommendations

Represented class descriptions were updated in order to ensure that the format is consistent,
and that the duties and responsibilities are current and properly reflect the required knowledge,
abilities, and skills.

When evaluating the allocation of positions, the focus is on assigned job duties and the job-
related requirements for successful performance, not on individual employee capabilities or
amount of work performed. Positions are evaluated and classified on the basis of such factors as
knowledge and skill required to perform the work, the complexity of the work, the authority
delegated to make decisions and take action, the responsibility for the work of others and/or for
budget expenditures, contacts with others (both inside and outside of the organization), the
impact of the position on the organization, and working conditions.

Furthermore, it is necessary to: (i) identify the duties that the incumbents are currently being
required to perform; (ii) determine if those duties are captured in the current classification
description; and (iii) identify the percentage of duties being performed, if any, which are outside
of the current classification.

Tifle Change

One change in the classification plan, as noted above, was the title change for eight (8)
represented classifications.

Table 1. Title Change Recommendations

Retirement Accounting Technician Accounting Technician
Retirement Accounting Specialist |lI Accounting Specialist
Retirement Senior Member Services Data Data Technology Specialist
Specialist

Retirement Member Services Data Member Services Specialist
Specialist

Retirement Office Specialist Office Specialist
Retirement Counselor Level | Retirement Counselor

15



i Qi

ees’ Refirement Association

. Current Classification Title . . Proposed Classification Title
Retirement Member Services Technician Retirement Services Technician
Retirement Counselor Level Il Senior Retirement Counselor
Retirement Counselor Level Il Senior Retirement Counselor

Title changes are recommended to more clearly reflect the level and scope being performed, to
consolidate work into broader categories that could be used CCCERA-wide, as well as establish
consistency with the labor market and industry standards. Any compensation recommendations
(detailed in Volume II) are not dependent upon a new title, but upon the market value as defined
by job scope, level and responsibilities, and the qualifications required for successful job
performance. All recommended position allocations in Appendix 1.

Reclassification

Reclassification recommendations are made for positions that are working out of class due to
level and scope of work and/or job functions that have been added or removed from to those
positions over time.

The study did not recommend that any positions be reclassified.
Classification Elimination

With the creation of the Senior Retirement Counselor and Retirement Counselor class
descriptions there is no longer a need nor enough distinction between classifications to justify
the continuance of the Retirement Counselor Levels I-lll classifications. Therefore, we are
recommending that these classifications be eliminated.

The revised classification descriptions serve as a general description of the work performed and
provide a framework of the expectations of each position for the employee. Requests for the
addition of new positions and classifications and/or reclassification of an existing position should
follow established CCCERA policies and procedures. Any decisions related to the addition of new
positions and classifications, reclassification of an existing position, and promotion of an existing
position will depend on the needs and resources of CCCERA and the availability of work, as well
as the ability of existing positions to meet the qualifications of and perform the duties of the
higher-level class.

Finally, as mentioned previously, a classification plan is not a static, unchanging entity. The
classification plan should be reviewed on a regular, on-going basis and may be amended or
revised as required.

16



Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

It has been a pleasure working with CCCERA on this critical project. Please do not hesitate to
contact us if we can provide any additional information or clarification regarding this report.

Respectfully submitted by,
Koff & Associates

%@zﬂ/

Catherine “Katie” Kaneko
President

17



Classification Study - Final Report
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Appendix |

Recommended Position Allocations



JOSIAIRANG SBOIUBS JUBUBIEY
20510BANg SINAIE AANIDY
JOSIMBANG STNADS JUBWIRIRDY
10s1as8dng SIS TUSWRIDY
JOSIAIANG SATIALRG INBIBIADY
AosinBdng SauALGS TRIeY
JoSARdNg S21ASDG JUBBITIY
dng SaoimRg ]
J05{AsRENG YHFUILPY
Josiniadng YHAMMPY

105138005 YHAMLPY
JosIAsRdNg HH/unupy
AEBIADEN SIDIAIAE JAGINaRY
JOSIAIRGNG SI0IAIDG IS
1O5IASDENG SOMALDE JaguIay
JOsIAadNS $831AIBE JDGUDN
Iasirsadng Sa0IAaG Jaquiap
JOSIAIRANS SIOIAIRG JBTRUBH
SOSHIBERS SIHAIDS JAqEAH
J0sAIBANS YHANWPY
103148008 YHURUPY
JesIAIRANS YHARWPY
ssiasadng Sununodoy
Jospdng Fununoy
Josnspdng Sununoy
Josssdng Buunaoay

anpIL

sG] BUIST
SIARG BLIBT
SIARQg BUIIT
SiAR(] AUIBT
SIABQ BUIIT
SR SUIBL
SIABQ BUIBF
siaeq suBp

oyans esas),
TOBRG PSR
YR Esal),
0UDIS ESBIL.
10YaiG esau),
04 ESDIL
I0UaD§ EsAIL

wedy uo|
133503 1ary
walsd3 o7
urgsdy Lo
losia1adng

s8ueyd apiL
a8ueya oIy
Bueyd apl
sBuBi ),
eduey ).
sBusyg oL
aduewd 3|
23ueya api)
olueyd 3L

BBuey) oL

sluen) AL
s8uey) oL
aguey apiL
83uBya BRI
aBueip By,
a3uel s,
aBuey BpIL
23uryy BpL
aBuep spit
wfuE) SIL
sBubyD) apL
aBueiD spIL
suey) AL
afuey) oL
euey) L
a8uey) L

uoy

J0{BSUNGD AUBHIDY
IC[IFUNTT JDBINIY JOSS
JO[BSUNG) TUSUIBABY JONFS

IDJISUNDTY JWBWRBY

DRIIR] SEHAIE
Y SIHAISS G
JO[BSUNDT JUBUBINBY JOLIDY
10]35URAYD JUBWIBINAY JDSS

Isyewads SO
wienads aRy0
IeRES WY
Isienads sauo
DIULDB | S3IIAUSS
1{ULaR | SBainIag
IHRTIAS SDTBAISG SPHLDIN
ISHRDDES SIS FIGUD
IBHROAAS SPWAISS IR
wijemads Admpuyony sieg
wsiepeds ABopuyos) eeq
PISISSY SARBHSIUIIPY
JUBISIESY BARZHSIILIPY
TUISTSSY IATRHSIUILPY
ueplIyaaL Sununasay
UBHLYDa | Bununoady
serzeds Sugunaoay
sienads Bununcosy
a1 pasodoid

£10T J3quiaydag

1517 uoned0| Y

| $DjasUNOT JUBUSIRaY BLSGHIY

[H o] JOPSUNO]) JUSNRINSY HaquiE)

[} {BAST JOIRSUTHI) JUBUSIEY SUBIIA

1 JOOSUNOY RIGUIAIIOY JuRION

P91 SIHAIBG JSqUIBIN T aydop-Apewag

120403 ), $2ASDS SBWD BunzQ)-eljEnAay

[ {RADT JORSUNA) JUSWSRIY vl

HI {957 JOBSUNO) JusuinoYy Aga

)P0y P3N0 WAUDINTY spuop

isijeads 30 JsuRRY ugIng

3NPO lat I |

sHerads a0 uIRILDY oeyIEg

USRS STNAIRG ITGUISIY IUBWRIIAY ano)
RHILOT | $DONISE JOqUIDIA 1L 3ied
ISYRIHIS Z1RQ SINAIDG ISGUIdN JUBWDIIRY SSHBM
ISHBHSAS PIBQ SE0AIDS SOGLISI IUBWAIDY 103
Iseiads e1e( SIVNASIS JSqUIBR JUBIINEY SDHOS
dg PIRQ SIOWUDE JBGUBIN JORIAS JuBWIRNIY zouniep
e3eq S JIQUISN JOHWIS DRI sphoy
JURISISSY SARERSHINIEY JUSUIINeY Rngsoy
JURISISHY FARBASIUILUPY JUDIBIASY Sueny
JUBISISSY JARCHSUIKPY TUSUIRI0Y sesey
ueniyps), Fununoosy Wausnay ouyase)
uepuya) Sununoddy WewBINY LTI

11 35Hepads Bu3unoIsy JusuBIEBY PSMOINY

11 381Eioads Bununoony Jusws.gey ausep

3L IUBLN) awep 3se

uonePossy Juawainay saakojdwz Auno) eiso) enuo)

a8
STWIEF
suueug
sueyq
euEy
Auznug
enal
e3Issef
epuokY
Yy
%
Aposng
BBt
#HF

mn
BulJBYg
Aey
Ble
3R

BUTSHT

]

ay,

SuBje
BISIURLY,
IBUET BUSZOY
Aegy

Jwen 38114



Classification Study - Final Report
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Appendix |l

New Classification Descriptions



JUNE 2017

%}i“i %,\ CCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST
DEFINITION

Under general direction, performs a variety of specialized technical accounting functions in support of
CCCERA'’s financial operations; areas of responsibility may include reconciliation of investment accounts,
ledgers and cash accounts, maintenance of retirement system databases, auditing of transactions, rates, and
records, and assisting with the preparation of various governmental agency financial and statistical reports;
and performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general direction from the Accounting Supervisor.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This is the advanced level in the paraprofessional accounting series responsible for regularly performing
the most complex duties related to auditing, reconciliation, and account support activities. This position
may also provide lead direction to accounting staff. This class is distinguished from the Accountant
classification in that the latter is a professional level requiring completion of a four-year degree and
knowledge of a wide variety of governing financial standards and their impact on financial statements.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (IHNustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
functions of the job.

» Records transactions, and maintains and reconciles a variety of general ledger accounts, cash accounts,
and related subsidiary accounts pertaining to retirement account investment activity and transactions.

» Records, reviews, reconciles, and processes varied accounting reports, journals, ledgers, payroll,
retirement contributions, or related fiscal data; reports discrepancies to appropriate parties.

» Receives and reviews correspondence from investment managers; maintains, prepares, and records
investments from custodial banks for multiple investment manager’s balance sheets and income
statements; analyzes and records investments into appropriate stock and bond income category;
researches, analyzes, and resolves discrepancies.

» Performs cash reconciliations for a variety of accounts including, but not limited to, Payroll Accounts,
Operating Accounts, Operation Cash Accounts, and real properties owned by CCCERA which are
managed through a third party; performs a three-way reconciliation between (i) the bank’s operating
statement; (ii)) CCCERA’s general ledger; and (iii) Contra Costa County’s Auditor’s general ledger
system,; researches, analyzes, and resolves discrepancies; prepares journal entries.

» Processes membership related fiscal transaction reports from member agencies; reviews and audits a
variety of fiscal factors including, but not limited to, contribution rates, contributions, and service
credits, ensuring compliance with mandated and CCCERA rules and regulations; reconciles and
balances monthly reports to cash received; researches, resolves and reconciles discrepancies; generates
deposit permit documents and journal vouchers; posts adjustments to CCCERA’s accounting system.



Accounting Specialist
Page 2 of 4

>

YVV Vv VY VYV V¥V

Performs reconciliations on County payroll and contracts; extracts payroll related data from the
County’s general ledger; reconciles County (i) retirement revenues and expense accounts to cash
received; (ii) retirement reports to the County Auditor’s reconciliation; and (iii) County purchase
contracts; prepares worksheets to record and document totals for payroll and purchases; posts to
CCCERA'’s general ledger; prepares journal vouchers for the County and other member agencies.
Processes member refunds; audits and reviews terminated employee’s file; identifies any missing
information; verifies account balances and payments are accurate; approves refund and posts
transaction to CCCERA’s accounting system; ensures all transactions are compliant with mandated and
CCCERA’s rules and regulations.

Conducts a final review of accounts payable transactions in the system; reviews transactions for
completeness and accuracy; validates accounting codes and other transaction details, and verifies
supporting documentation.

Prepares and completes a variety of financial forms and/or reports relevant to assigned fiscal program
operations.

Creates and maintains various financial databases, file systems, correspondence, and ledger records to
track information related to account balances.

Communicates with auditors, investment managers, master custodian bank, and other financial staff
with various organizations.

Provides support to the annual audit process by preparing documents, and researching, verifying, and
resolving issues which arise during the audit.

When assigned by supervisor, may provide training on work procedures to staff.

Proofreads and checks financial transactions for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with
Retirement Board policies, accounting standards, and government regulations.

Performs related duties as assigned.

When assigned to Active Member Database:

>

>

Reconciles Active Member reserves with Active Member database, ensuring that accurate accounting
is reflected in both systems.

Extracts data from the Active Member database and performs a comparative analysis of the monetary
transactions between the Accounting System and the system database; researches discrepancies by
referencing source documents; refers reconciling items back to initiator for correction.

Creates a detailed reconciliation for each Primary Account within each Tier by separately recording the
General Ledger Active Reserve Accounts and the Active Member Database and by ensuring reconciled
items are detailed to reflect member information, transaction type, the amount of the discrepancy and
the research documentation.

Communicates with other divisions and their staff in the areas of membership accounting policies,
procedures, reconciling items, findings, and database issues.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

>

VV VYV

Accepted principles, practices, purpose, and operations of an Employees' Retirement System. Policies,
procedures, and regulations of the County Employee's Retirement Act of 1937 as it relates to work
performed.

Methods and techniques of reconciling multiple complex accounting transactions.

Methods and techniques of researching and analyzing a variety of fiscal transactions involving general
accounting, retirement membership data, and investments.

Methods and techniques of calculating and processing fiscal transactions in multiple organizations.
General knowledge of international and domestic investments.



Accounting Specialist

Page 3 of 4

» Methods and techniques of developing and maintaining complex filing records.

» Advanced mathematical skills.

» English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

» Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

» Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the public,
vendors, contractors, and County staff.

Ability to:

» Reconcile and balance a variety of financial transactions from multiple accounting systems.

» Interpret and apply provisions of retirement laws with respect to financial transactions.

» Learn the financial reporting format from member agencies with respect to membership data and
transactions.

» Perform accurate and legible financial and statistical work.

» Make rapid and accurate arithmetical computations.

» Research and compile data relative to payrolls, retirement benefit statements, investment records,
reports, and actuarial reports.

» Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

» Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

» Organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical deadlines.

> Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

> Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

» Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations at all times.
Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:
Equivalent to the completion of twelfth (12") grade supplemented by six units of college level accounting
coursework and at least three (3) years of increasing responsible experience in performing complex account
posting and reconciliation, retirement payroll account monitoring, financial record database management,
or investment account recordkeeping and reconciliation.
Licenses and Certifications:

> None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; to operate a motor vehicle and to visit various meeting sites; vision to read printed materials and
a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate in person and over the telephone. This is
primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in work areas and walking between work areas
may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer keyboard
or calculator and to operate standard office equipment. Positions in this classification occasionally bend,



Accounting Specialist
Page 4 of 4

stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and file information. Employees
must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 10 pounds.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact with upset staff and/or
public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures.



JUNE 2017

:‘%&’;}:CCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN
DEFINITION
Under general supervision, incumbents perform a variety of accounting office functions in support of
CCCERA'’s fiscal transactional operations; functional areas of responsibility include reviewing and
processing accounts payable, processing invoices, preparing journal entries for the Auditor’s Office, and

processing payroll related transactions; and performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Accounting Supervisor. Exercises no supervision over staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This classification is responsible for independently processing financial records and transactions within
CCCERA’s Finance Department and is distinguished from the Accounting Specialist classification in that
the latter is responsible for the more complex and higher-level technical accounting work, has a higher level
of discretion and independent decision-making, and provides technical and functional direction to lower-
level finance support staff.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
functions of the job.

» Performs a variety of technical accounting duties in support of CCCERA’s fiscal transactional
operations.

» Processes account payables to ensure that all charges are in compliance with policies and procedures;
compares invoices, supporting documentation, and signatures to confirm paperwork is accurate;
resolves invoice discrepancies.

» Processes invoices for periodic check runs; runs reports within the financial management system and
compares to transaction worksheets to confirm they match and are accurate; submits to higher level
accounting staff for review prior to final processing.

» Processes refunds from the Member Services Department; sets up member information within the
financial management system; enters and codes all accounts for payment processing.

» Reviews and checks payroll deductions from the Retiree Payroll for accuracy prior to formatting,
printing, and preparing the monthly Retiree Payroll check run; codes all payroll deductions for correct
payer source; generates Payroll Deduction Report and prints backup documentation and mailing labels.

» Maintains the petty cash fund; handles disbursements and balancing of the fund; reconciles and
replenishes the fund.

» Prepares Journal Vouchers for the Auditor’s Office, including cash transfers and accounts payable
transactional reporting.

» Performs duties in support of the purchasing function; sets up and maintains database for new vendors;
reviews quotes for services to identify and resolve discrepancies; verifies changes with management;
communicates with vendors regarding statements and invoices; creates purchase orders; scans and files
all supporting documentation.



Accounting Technician
Page 2 of 3

V VVV VY

Checks, indexes, and files bills, vouchers, purchase orders, claims, and other financial papers.
Creates, maintains, and records financial transactions and data on accounting software, spreadsheets,
and databases; monitors expenditure codes and, within established guidelines, adjusts as needed.
Performs arithmetic calculations and verifies totals and extensions.

Supports record retention, record keeping, and maintenance of inventory of CCCERA's fixed assets.
Assists in a variety of general office support work such as organizing and maintaining various files,
preparing reports, forms, and specialized documents.

Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

YV VVVVVVVVY

Operations, services, and activities of an accounting department.

General understanding of accounting policies and procedures relevant to work performed.
Operational characteristics of financial management software relevant to work performed.
Basic mathematical skills.

Methods and techniques of reviewing and comparing fiscal documents for alignment.
Principles and practices of payroll processing.

Clerical procedures and practices, including filing, indexing, and cross-referencing.
Principles and practices of customer service.

Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

Ability to:

YV VVVVVVY VVVVYVVY

Learn operations and services of a public retirement system.

Perform a variety of fiscal transaction processing tasks.

Generate routing reports within a financial management system.

Make rapid and accurate arithmetical computations.

Create and maintain fiscal records and files.

Operate modern office equipment, including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

Organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical deadlines.

Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

Follow oral and written directions.

Maintain confidentiality.

Effectively communicate orally and in writing.

Communicate information in a format that is easily understood.

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations at all times.

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and
abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to the completion of twelfth (12™) grade and two (2) years of increasingly responsible experience
in financial/accounting support and recordkeeping.



Accounting Technician
Page 3 of 3

Licenses and Certifications:
> None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; to operate a motor vehicle and to visit various meeting sites; vision to read printed materials and
a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate in person and over the telephone. This is
primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in work areas and walking between work areas
may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer keyboard
or calculator and to operate standard office equipment. Positions in this classification occasionally bend,
stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and file information. Employees
must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 10 pounds.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact with upset staff and/or
public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures.



JUNE 2017

?%‘\"E?i CCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT
DEFINITION

Under general supervision, performs a variety of complex and specialized confidential and non-confidential
secretarial and administrative support functions for the Board of Retirement and executive/management
staff; oversees and supports specialized functional areas such as CCCERA’s Imaging System; coordinates
administrative functions such as records retention and procurement; and performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Administrative/Human Resources Supervisor. May exercise lead
supervision over lower level technical or clerical staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This classification provides a wide variety of technical, secretarial, and administrative support of a
responsible nature under limited supervision in support of the Board of Retirement and
executive/management staff. Work is often of a confidential nature and requires a detailed understanding
of various department policies, procedures, and regulations in order to interpret and apply them to a variety
of situations. This position is distinguished from Office Specialist by the variety and complexity of
assignments.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
Sfunctions of the job.

» Performs a variety of complex secretarial and administrative support functions for the Board of
Retirement and executive/management staff, including business correspondence, meeting scheduling
and calendaring, and coordinating travel arrangements; creates and maintains a variety of Board
member personnel and continuing education files, as well as legal, investment, and administration files;
updates and maintains the office library.

> Composes a variety of documents such as correspondence, memoranda, reports, forms, legal
documents, spreadsheets, or charts from instructions or drafts, based on knowledge and understanding
of departmental activities.

» Compiles, verifies, codes, and processes bills; resolves billing issues with vendors and other
organizations.

> Proofreads printed material for grammar, punctuation, spelling, and overall content accuracy, ensuring
compliance with CCCERA’s policies with respect to format and presentation.

» Prepares the Retirement Board meeting routine agenda items for inclusion in the Board packet; verifies
accuracy of data within some packet documentation; copies and collates materials for Board and
committee meetings; arranges for the distribution of Board and committee meeting packets.

» Prepares Board and committee meeting notices ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Brown
Act; sets up audio equipment for recording Board meeting discussions and votes; attends meetings,



Administrative Assistant
Page 2 of 3

VVVYVY VY

takes and transcribes meeting minutes; and maintains meeting minutes binders and documents; resolves
audio problems and uploads audio recordings for inclusion on CCCERA’s website.

Prepares and assists in the preparation of reports, recommendations, and other written material by
researching information, compiling and organizing content, and by performing or coordinating the
clerical work essential in their preparation.

Receives and reviews requests for travel, makes travel arrangements consistent with CCCERA’s
policies and procedures; checks multiple travel options to ensure lowest cost possible; creates and
processes travel authorization forms; prepares and distributes travel itineraries; updates travel logs;
prepares and processes travel expense and mileage reimbursements, and credit card charges.
Schedules training, registers employees, and maintains files for a variety of training programs,
conferences, and seminars.

Provides support to CCCERA’s payroll and Human Resources functions; creates calendars and
reminders for supervisors and managers on payroll cutoff dates; collects employee time cards and
reviews for general accuracy; researches discrepancies and elicits guidance from supervisors and
managers; prepares reports to ensure accuracy of information entered into the system; calculates,
adjusts, and balances leave taken/accruals within established guidelines; researches and responds to
questions from employees on payroll related matters; prepares employee appraisal reports and
Personnel Action Notices.

When assigned to Imaging/Records Retention: oversees the overall operations and maintenance of
CCCERA’s Imaging System; coordinates the schedule for the release of imaged documents; serves as
final review and maintains quality control for all imaged documents; coordinates, maintains, and
preserves CCCERA’s records retention system; coordinates the storage, retrieval, preservation,
disposition, and destruction of records in accordance with mandated and CCCERA policies,
procedures, and standards; maintains inventory log of materials archived.

Coordinates purchasing activities, including assessing needs, ordering supplies, and reviewing supply
requests for accuracy; organizes and maintains supplies; resolves billing issues with vendors; researches
new vendors to fit organizational needs.

Performs a variety of routine maintenance, training, and troubleshooting for various office machines;
contacts repair person in accordance with service contracts when necessary.

Opens, screens, and distributes mail.

Maintains confidential files and records within assigned functional area of responsibility.

Assists the public and employees in obtaining information from official records.

Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

VVY ¥V V VYV VVV

Principles and practices of office administration and secretarial support.

Principles of lead supervision and training.

Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

Rules and regulations governing public meeting notices, meeting recording/minute taking, and
distribution of meeting materials, including the provisions of the Brown Act.

Principles and practices of record retention and management, including imaging system processes and
CCCERA'’s policies and procedures.

Principles and practices of payroll processing, including compliance with memoranda of understanding,
personnel policies, and related employment documents.

Sources for researching options and making travel arrangements for multiple groups.

Principles and practices of public sector procurement.

Principles and practices of customer service.



Administrative Assistant
Page 3 of 3

» Methods and techniques of developing and maintaining complex filing records.
> English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

Ability to:

Prepare a variety of written correspondence, documents, meeting notices, meeting minutes, and related
materials, ensuring consistency in format.

Lead, plan, assign, and review the work of assigned staff.

Organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical deadlines.

Independently follow directions and complete assigned tasks.

Operate modern office equipment, including computer equipment and specialized software application
programs.

Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations at all times.

Y V. VV VVVYVY

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to graduation from twelfth (12™) grade and three (3) years of increasingly responsible clerical
and/or secretarial experience.

Licenses and Certifications:
> None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate
in person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in
work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter,
and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and
closed to retrieve and file information. Employees should possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects up to 25 pounds.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.



JUNE 2017

:g‘;ij:‘“: C C C E RA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

DATA TECHNOLOGY SPECIALIST

DEFINITION

Under direction, performs a variety of complex systems and data audit tasks within CCCERA’s Plan
Administration System (CPAS) Member Sub-Ledger Database System; receives, reviews, audits, and posts
all incoming data submitted by member agencies or entered into the system by CCCERA staff authorized
to do so; reconciles a variety of demographic and financial transaction data within the systems; and performs
related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Member Services Supervisor. Exercises no supervision over staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class is distinguished from the Member Services Specialist and the Retirement Counselor/Senior
Retirement Counselor classes by the performance of the full range of systems technical duties which include
responsibility for the timely completion and transfer of data, and quality control with respect to the integrity
of the data to be used by CCCERA and its member agencies.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
Jfunctions of the job.

> Receives files from member agencies for import into CPAS; adjusts raw data files to ensure proper
format; generates “scrub sheets” to audit member submissions relative to data in the CPAS system;
troubleshoots files to identify and resolve data errors; interfaces with staff in member agencies to verify
and correct electronic data files; uploads member files to CPAS.

» Identifies factors contributing to recurring data errors; participates in researching errors to enhance and
improve data flow, and to test and implement solutions which result in improved data accuracy.

> Audits posted member accounts to ensure accuracy by reviewing and reconciling multiple data points
between member files and CPAS including, but not limited to, member demographics, earnings and
wages, salary and deduction totals, contribution rates, and related transactions; balances imported files
to “scrub sheets” and adjusts data as needed; submits files to the Accounting Department.

» Performs system monetary validation and transfers; verifies monies received for purchases against
calculated costs, and posts the receivable amount to CPAS; transfers retiree contributions to retiree
reserve accounts; validates interest postings to employee accounts against the Member Sub-Ledger
Database System; transfers funds from purchase contracts and reciprocity transactions; prepares journal
entries for the Accounting Department.

» Maintains the Member Sub-Ledger Database System ensuring that all information in the system is
verified and entered in an accurate manner; researches and verifies information including, but not
limited to, service credit discrepancies, contribution status, monetary corrections, and account
adjustments.



Data Technology Specialist
Page 2 of 3

» Collaborates with information technology staff on system changes, maintenance and upgrades, and the
resolution of system errors; participates in project meetings; undertakes system testing within the
Member Services Department.

» Audits, updates, and generates data for use in the preparation of CCCERA fiscal and operational
statements, forms, and reports.

» Performs data entry for a variety of tasks related to member account maintenance.

» Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Methods and techniques of importing and converting files to required format.

Methods and techniques of auditing and reconciling system files and accounts.

Operational characteristics of pension system databases.

Principles and practices of database maintenance and testing.

Intermediate to advanced level knowledge of Excel spreadsheet applications.

Methods and techniques of troubleshooting data files, including query reports.

Methods and techniques of data entry and retrieval.

Accepted principles, practices, purpose, and operations of an Employees' Retirement System.
Principles and practices of effective customer service.

Principles and practices of maintaining confidential member records.

Mathematical techniques.

Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

VVVVVVVVVVYVYY

Ability to:

Perform a variety of database functions.

Identify, troubleshoot, and correct data errors.

Review, audit, and validate or correct system data.

Perform accurate mathematical calculations.

Organize own work, set priorities and meet critical deadlines.

Learn and apply the applicable rules, regulations, policies, and procedures of the County Employees'
Retirement Act of 1937 relevant to work performed.

Maintain confidentiality.

Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.,

Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations at all times.

YV VV VYV VVVVVYYVY

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth (12") grade supplemented by coursework in accounting and
two (2) years of experience as a Member Services Specialist; or three (3) years of increasingly responsible
accounting support and/or fiscal database maintenance experience in a public or corporate retirement
system comparable to CCCERA.



Data Technology Specialist
Page 3 of 3

Licenses and Certifications:
> None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate in
person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in work
areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter, and
retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment. Positions
in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and closed to
retrieve and file information. Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and
objects up to 25 pounds with use of proper equipment.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact with upset staff and/or
public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures.



JUNE 2017

u&ﬁi C C G E RA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

MEMBER SERVICES SPECIALIST
DEFINITION

Under direction, provides specialized support to the Member Services Department; processes all member
terminations by researching separation documents and providing information and educational materials to
terminated members; generates refund calculation spreadsheets and processes refund transactions; and
performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from supervisory and management staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class is distinguished from the Data Technology Specialist in that the latter class performs the full
range of systems technical duties which include responsibility for the timely completion and transfer of
data, and quality control with respect to the integrity of the data to be used by CCCERA and its member
agencies.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
Sfunctions of the job.

> Responds to a variety of telephone calls and email inquiries from working members seeking
information on their membership; explains member rights and responsibilities regarding retirement plan
benefits and options; within guidelines, provides guidance once members have terminated employment;
refers members to counseling staff as appropriate.

> Obtains relevant information on membership status through researching CCCERA’s database, available
personnel, or termination membership records, microfiche records, system reports, and other sources
to obtain the necessary information for tasks related to resolving retirement service credit discrepancies,
status of contributions, and vesting requirements.

> Processes all member terminations ensuring tact and privacy in communications; researches separation
documents; reaches out to members, as needed, to obtain additional information; generates
correspondence to provide members with account information, educational materials, and instruction
packets to assist them in making informed choices.

» Generates refund calculation spreadsheets to compute a final refund amount; balances employee
contribution accounts to ensure all monies are accurate; validates correct interest posting and tax
requirements; completes check requests and related documents to facilitate refunds and submits to the
Accounting Department.

» Performs or verifies required calculations for retirement payroll, retirement service credit audits,
account balances, service credit purchase costs, and related transactions; prepares final average salary
benefit options for deferred and reciprocal members.

> Performs calculations for member account adjustments, including applying interest to missed
payments.



Member Services Specialist
Page 2 of 3

>

>

»

>

Researches distribution options available to members who are in the “over 70 deferred” category; places
information into system reports.

Provides assistance in the preparation of monthly, quarterly, and annual reports by generating system
documents and verifying information on spreadsheets.

Completes deposit permits for the deposit of all monies collected from members for service purchases;
enters all relevant information into the purchase tracking log; delivers all checks and cash, with
supporting documentation, to the Accounting Department.

Performs general office duties including filing, photocopying, maintaining records and compiling data
for forms and reports.

Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

» Accepted principles, practices, purpose, and operations of an Employees' Retirement System.

» Principles and practices of benefits administration in the public sector.

> Principles and practices of effective customer service.

» Principles and practices of maintaining confidential member records.

» Mathematical techniques.

» Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.
English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

Ability to:

» Respond to questions, and provide relevant information to members who have terminated from the
system.

» Perform a variety of retirement plan related calculations.

» Organize own work, set priorities and meet critical deadlines.

» Learn and apply the applicable rules, regulations, policies, and procedures of the County Employees'
Retirement Act of 1937 relevant to work performed.

» Maintain confidentiality.

» Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

» Demonstrate strong customer service skills.

» Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

» Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

> Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

» Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations at all times.

Education and Experience:

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth (12™) grade and two (2) years of experience as a Retirement
Services Technician; or three (3) years of increasingly responsible clerical accounting experience in a public
or corporate retirement system comparable to CCCERA.



Member Services Specialist
Page 3 of 3

Licenses and Certifications:
> None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate
in person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in
work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter,
and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and
closed to retrieve and file information. Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects up to 25 pounds with the use of proper equipment.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact with upset staff and/or
public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures.



JUNE 2017

E‘fgé’?«CCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

mp OyEES RE(I!QMEI’E[ Association

OFFICE SPECIALIST
DEFINITION
Under general supervision, performs a spectrum of office support activities; gathers, completes, and
processes forms, documents, memos, and letters; review forms, documents, and letters for completeness
and accuracy; answers phones, and greets and directs visitors; prepares and scans files for CCCERA

Imaging and Record Retention Programs; and performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Administrative/Human Resources Supervisor. Exercises no
supervision over staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class is distinguished from the Administrative Assistant by its responsibility for processing a wide
variety of letters, forms, memos, and imaging in support of CCCERA’s administrative and operational
functions. This classification is further distinguished from the Administrative Assistant in that the latter
classification performs more varied and complex work assignments, such as providing administrative and
secretarial support to the Retirement Board and executive and management staff, and overseeing functional
programs including the Imaging and the Records Retention Programs.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Tllustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
functions of the job.

» Performs a variety of telephone/receptionist functions; activates/reactivates phones; answers, screens,
announces, and transfers calls to appropriate staff members; answers basic information and procedural
questions; greets and directs authorized visitors.

» Prepares complex correspondence and forms, including member estimates, options, or other form
letters, derived from system calculations or brief instructions.

» Prepares and assembles reports, forms, packets, and specialized documents related to CCCERA’s
operations, including monthly leave accrual reports, Retirement Allowance Program forms, and
application packets.

» Maintains and updates a variety of logs to track transactions such as applications, distribution election,
accounting checks, undelivered benefits statements, new hires, and related categories.

» Reviews forms, applications, documents, and letters for accuracy and completeness; reviews member
files to identify retirement tier and status in the system; organizes information and places into files for
Counselor staff.

> Assembles and processes a wide variety of outgoing mail and mass mailings, including forms,
handbooks, warrants, checks, and Service Retirement and Disability Retirement application packets.

» Assembles and lists all medical documents acquired from member, Risk Management, and attorneys
creating a complete package for Medical Advisor review.

» Provides assistance to management in the processing of Public Records Act requests.



Office Specialist
Page 2 of 3

>

Ensures that meeting and counseling rooms and other staff facilities are maintained, and that any needed
forms, booklets, and general office supplies are stocked.

» When assigned to Imaging/Records Retention: operates and maintains the CCCERA Imaging System;
collects, scans, and indexes documents; creates spreadsheets to track pages; prepares, cleans, and
purges files; categorizes all imaged documents and correspondence for easy access by CCCERA
employees; checks imaged documents for quality; retrieves, prepares, and sends imaged files to off-site
storage; ensures adherence to CCCERA policies, procedures, and quality control measures; maintains
detailed records, logs, files, and libraries.

» Performs routine maintenance, training, and troubleshooting for various office machines; contacts
repair person as needed; makes arrangements for equipment maintenance and repair.

» Attends to a variety of office administrative details, such as keeping informed of departmental activities,
transmitting information, copying documents and materials, and ordering and stocking office supplies.

> As assigned by management, may lead and direct the work of assigned staff and conduct training in
work procedures.

> Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

> Principles and practices of office administration.

» Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

» Principles and practices of data collection and report preparation.

> Recordkeeping procedures and practices, including filing, indexing, and cross-referencing methods.

» Methods and techniques of imaging documents for accuracy and completeness.

» Principles and practices related to document retention.

> Basic mathematics.

» Principles and practices of customer service.

> English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

» Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the public,
vendors, contractors, and County staff.

Ability to:

» Process a variety of forms and letters in support of CCCERA’s operations.

> Respond to and effectively prioritize multiple phone calls and other requests for service.

> Prepare correspondence and reports; maintain records and databases.

> Prepare and maintain accurate and concise records and filing systems.

» Understand and carry out oral and written instructions

» Organize own work, set priorities and meet critical deadlines.

» Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

> Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

» Maintain confidentiality.

» Perform word processing with sufficient speed and accuracy to perform assigned work.

» Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

> Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

> Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations at all times.



Office Specialist
Page 3 of 3

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities

is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to completion of the twelfth (12%) grade and two (2) years of clerical and/or secretarial
experience.

Licenses and Certifications:
» None

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate
in person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in
work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter,
and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and
closed to retrieve and file information. Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects up to 25 pounds.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.



JUNE 2017

?;}i;‘fCCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association
RETIREMENT COUNSELOR / SENIOR RETIREMENT COUNSELOR
DEFINITION
Under direction, performs a variety of specialized technical counseling duties in support of CCCERA’s
retirement system; responsibilities include working in the areas of direct counseling to active members
under consideration for regular retirement; provides counseling and fact-finding to retirees concerned with
their annuity and/or benefits; performs specialized retiree payroll and recordkeeping duties; and performs

related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Retirement Services Supervisor. Exercises no supervision over staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

Retirement Counselor: This is the entry level classification in the flexibly staffed Counselor series. Initially
under general supervision, incumbents perform a variety of counselling and payroll processing duties while
learning CCCERA policies and procedures. As experience is gained, assignments become more varied,
complex, and difficult, and close supervision and frequent review of work lessen as an incumbent
demonstrates skill to perform the work independently. Positions at this level usually perform most of the
duties required of the positions at the Senior Counselor level, but are not expected to function at the same skill
level and usually exercise less independent discretion and judgment in matters related to work procedures and
methods until fully competent and successfully functioning at this level. Work is usually supervised while in
progress and fits an established structure or pattern. Exceptions or changes in procedures are explained in
detail as they arise.

Senior Retirement Counselor: This is the fully competent level classification in the series. Positions at this
level are distinguished from the Retirement Counselor level by the performance of the full range of duties
as assigned, working independently with minimal oversight and supervision, and exercising judgment and
initiative. Positions at this level receive only occasional instruction or assistance as new or unusual
situations arise, and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of the work unit. Successful
performance of the work requires thorough knowledge of CCCERA’s retirement program offerings and the
rules and policies it operates under, and its payroll transaction processes, and requires a high level of
facilitation, conflict resolution, and interpersonal communication skills to effectively address the more
difficult situations. This level may audit and review the work of staff at the same level or lower and provide
guidance and training to Retirement Counselors and Retirement Services Technicians. This class is
distinguished from the Retirement Services Supervisor in that the latter is responsible for supervising the
staff, activities, and operations within the Retirement Services Department.

The Retirement Counselor/Senior Retirement Counselor is a flexibly staffed series, and positions at the
Senior level are normally filled by advancement from the Retirement Counselor level, requiring one (1)
year of experience in the Retirement Counselor class, and after gaining the knowledge, skill, and experience
which meet the qualifications for the work, and after demonstrating the ability to perform the work of the
higher-level class.



Retirement Counselor / Senior Retirement Counselor
Page 2 of 5

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
functions of the job. Depending upon assignment, duties may include but are not limited to:

When assigned to Counseling:

>

Responds orally or in writing to a wide variety of retirement benefit questions for prospective, active,
deferred, and retired members, clearly articulating their various options so members can make informed
retirement planning choices.

Counsels members and their beneficiaries on benefit options, service purchases, service retirement
benefits, death benefits, and deferred and reciprocal benefits in compliance with mandated rules and
regulations; assists members in completing member enrollment forms and other related forms
including, but not limited to, change of beneficiary designation, electronic funds transfer, and
withholding certificates for pension payments; and processes member applications.

Calculates retirement benefit estimates verifying multiple factors, including service credits, purchase
contracts, retirement tier (s) and reciprocity arrangements with other agencies; sources utilized include,
among others, administrative guidelines, union agreements, mandated regulations, employment and
payroll records, and County Employees’ Retirement Act of 1937; requests information from staff in
CCCERA, member agencies, and other retirement agencies to ensure factual and accurate data with
which to perform calculations.

Calculates and processes service purchases by verifying member employment and payroll history;
confirms and certifies service purchases for payroll processing.

Conducts monthly group counseling sessions for active members who are seeking information on
retirement options; in advance of session, calculates estimated retirement pension benefits for each
group participant to educate and inform them on benefit options.

Researches, evaluates, and resolves complex retirement benefit claims and inquiries for specific issues
such as divorce and community property situations; identifies and reviews required documentation;
calculates account splits and informs alternate payee options; prepares forms and correspondence, and
processes paperwork

Performs system data entry to update member records and information based upon research conducted
for calculating benefits, service purchases and related transactions.

Performs general office duties such as filing, maintaining records, and compiling data for reports
Performs related duties as assigned.

When Assigned to Retiree Payroll:

>

>

Processes and distributes a large and complex retirement payroll, meeting all mandated retirement rules
and regulations.

Reviews and reconciles group deductions, ensuring they match prior to submitting the payroll to the
Accounting Department; works with member agencies and internal CCCERA staff, including the
information technology staff, to correct errors.

Receives updated information from retirees and places data into the payroll system, ensuring all data is
entered in an accurate manner; makes changes/adjustments for tax deductions, bank routing
information, child and spousal support wage garnishments, tax levies, and related financial transactions.
Receives notification of retiree death from family members, attorneys, Social Security reports, and
related sources; reviews estate related documents; confirms beneficiaries and determines paperwork
necessary to process survivor benefits; coordinates completion of necessary documentation with
appropriate party; processes benefits once all documentation is received.

Conducts process tests and examines financial transactions for accuracy; submits to team member or
supervisor for review.



Retirement Counselor / Sentor Retirement Counselor
Page 3 of 5

»

VVV VYV

Collaborates with information technology staff on testing new software under development to progress
project from testing environment to the actual environment.

Provides assistance to supervisor on assigned special projects.

Audits domestic relation orders; calculates death benefits; researches a variety of issues including
returned mail, stale dated checks, wage garnishments and levies.

Performs general office duties such as filing, maintaining records, and compiling data for reports.

As assigned, train new staff in work procedures.

Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Retirement Counselor

VV VVVVVVVY Y

Operations and services of a comprehensive retirement system, including member counseling and
payroll transaction processing.

Accepted principles, practices, purpose, and operations of an Employees' Retirement System.
Principles and practices of benefits administration in the public sector.

Principles and practices of payroll processing.

Principles and practices of effective counseling and meeting facilitation.

Principles and practices of effective customer service.

Principles and practices of maintaining complex and confidential member files and methods.
Mathematical techniques.

Modern office practices and methods including computer equipment and specialized applications
relevant to the work performed.

English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary and punctuation.

Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the public,
vendors, contractors, and County staff.

Senior Retirement Counselor

In addition to the above:

» Rules, regulations, policies, and procedures of the County Employees' Retirement Act of 1937.
Principles and practices of interpreting and applying the provisions of retirement laws and CCCERA
policies.

» Methods and techniques of calculating a diverse range of retirement planning options.

> Regulations and laws related to divorce and property settlements, and death benefits.

» Methods and techniques of training new staff in work procedures.

> Applicable policies, technical processes, and procedures related to benefit program operations and
services.

Ability to:

Retirement Counselor

>

>

Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations at all times.

Work in a fast-paced environment with multiple deadlines.

Conduct retirement related presentations to small groups of members.



Retirement Counselor / Senior Retirement Counselor
Page 4 of 5

>

VV VYV V VYVVV

Learn the rules, regulations, policies, and procedures of the County Employees' Retirement Act of 1937.
Learn to interpret and apply the provisions of retirement laws and CCCERA policies.

Learn the methods and techniques of calculating a diverse range of retirement planning options.

Learn the regulations and laws related to divorce and property settlements, and death benefits.

Learn the technical processes and procedures related to benefit program operations and services
including payroll processing.

Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

Demonstrate strong customer service skills.

Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing,

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

Senior Retirement Counselor

In addition to the above:

VVYVVVVVVVVYYVY

Communicate complex information in a manner easily understood by the client.

Research and compile data relative to payrolls, retirement benefits and actuarial reports.

Analyze and evaluate information, draw valid conclusions, and make recommendations.
Independently initiate and respond to correspondence.

Calculate a wide variety of retirement planning options.

Counsel members on the divorce process and required documentation.

Serve as a resource to lower level staff on plan operations.

Assist in the planning and implementation of special projects.

Work with information technology staff to test and approve new software builds within the department.
As assigned, train new staff in work procedures.

Research and resolve/recommend resolution to the more complicated retirement plan transactions such
as wage garnishments, divorce and property settlements, and death benefits.

Education and Experience:
Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Retirement Counselor

Equivalent to the completion of twelfth (12™) grade and two (2) years of experience as a Retirement
Services Technician, or three (3) years of increasingly responsible experience in a public or corporate
retirement system at a level comparable to the Retirement Services Technician class.

Senior Retirement Counselor

One (1) year of experience in the Retirement Counselor classification, and after gaining the knowledge,
skill, and experience which meet the qualifications for the work, and after demonstrating the ability to perform
the work of the higher-level class.

Licenses and Certifications:

> None.



Retirement Counselor / Senior Retirement Counselor
Page 5 of 5

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate
in person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in
work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter,
and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and
closed to retrieve and file information. Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects up to 25 pounds with the use of proper equipment.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact with upset staff and/or
public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures.



JUNE 2017

E;EJE::CCCERA FLSA: NON-EXEMPT

Employees’ Retirement Association

RETIREMENT SERVICES TECHNICIAN
DEFINITION

Under general supervision, provides specialized support to the Retirement Services and the Member
Services Departments; performs specialized and detailed mathematical calculations for retirement service
credits and purchases; reviews documentation for new hires and processes these members into the system;
and performs related duties as assigned.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from supervisory and management staff. Exercises no supervision over staff.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class is distinguished by its responsibility for processing paperwork for new system members,
evaluating member placement within the retirement system, and for performing retirement related
calculations such as estimates, service credits and purchase contracts.

EXAMPLES OF TYPICAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only)

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different
positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential
Sfunctions of the job.

> Receives, reviews, and processes paperwork and member enrollment forms, to enter members into the
retirement system; reviews documents for accuracy and requests clarifying or additional information
by submitting correspondence to members or other agency retirement system staff; conducts an initial
assessment of placement within a system tier by evaluating classification, bargaining unit agreement,
age upon entry into the system, membership in other retirement systems, and any related factors which
would influence the benefits to which the member is entitled; identifies the applicable contribution
rates; sets up and maintains employee master retirement file records.

> Reviews member agency transaction activity reports for new hires, changes in hours for members, and
related items which impact member benefits; identifies and processes payroll changes; proofs
spreadsheets and submits payroll sheets to appropriate recipients.

> Integrates information from payroll sheets and member enrollment forms to sub ledger sheets and
identifies proper sub ledger code; directs demographic changes to CCCERA’s Pension Administration
System (CPAS) such as name, address and beneficiary changes; processes approved missed
contribution adjustments and refunds for designated member groups.

> Conducts 130 audits to verify system accuracy by comparing data within CPAS to documentation
submitted by member agencies.

> Provides assistance in determining member reciprocity from service within other retirement systems;
facilitates forms and letters to agencies for counselor staff; ensures that proper service credit and details
are reported; serves as liaison with other agency representatives to complete transactions; maintains
logs and records.



Retirement Services Technician
Page 2 of 3

>

>

P

»

Communicates with participating districts, members, and other agencies regarding document
completion.

Performs retirement calculations, such as service credits, purchase contracts, conversions, and estimates
of future pension benefits; enters calculations into CPAS to confirm that manual calculations are
accurate.

Enters and reviews CPAS data for a variety of purposes including making certain that retiree payroll
deductions are correct, and updating tax or payment instructions; verifies that all instructions are signed
by appropriate party.

Sends notifications to retirees requesting updates on addresses and methods of contact; receives and
enters data into CPAS,

Performs general office duties including preparing and processing letters and forms, filing,
photocopying, maintaining records, and compiling data for forms and reports.

Performs related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

YV VVVVY

Accepted principles, practices, purpose, and operations of an Employees' Retirement System.
Principles and practices of effective customer service.

Principles and practices of maintaining confidential member records.

Basic mathematical techniques.

Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the work
performed.

English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation.

Ability to:

V VYV VYV VYV VYVVV VVYVY

Input and update information into pension administration software.

Perform audits and validate accuracy of information.

Identify, research, and resolve retirement contribution and service credit issues pertaining to member
retirement accounts.

Perform accurate calculations requiring the use of basic mathematical skills.

Perform a variety of retirement plan related calculations.

Work in a fast-paced environment with multiple deadlines.

Learn and apply the applicable rules, regulations, policies, and procedures of the County Employees'
Retirement Act of 1937 relevant to work performed.

Maintain confidentiality.

Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy and legal guidelines in
politically sensitive situations.

Demonstrate strong customer service skills.

Operate modern office equipment including computers and specialized software applications relevant
to work performed.

Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing.

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and effective working relationships with those contacted in the
course of work.

Demonstrate strict confidentiality, professionalism, integrity, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations at all times.



Retirement Services Technician
Page 3 of 3

Education and Experience:

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills, and abilities
is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required qualifications would be:

Equivalent to the completion of twelfth (12") grade and two (2) years of clerical accounting, payroll, or
retirement plan administration experience.

Licenses and Certifications:
» None.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, including a
computer; vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate
in person and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification although standing in
work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter,
and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.
Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and
closed to retrieve and file information. Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull
materials and objects up to 25 pounds with the use of proper equipment.

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions,
and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.



&

September 25, 2017
Total Compensation Study
Final Report

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement
Association

KOFF & ASSOCIATES

Catherine Kaneko
President

2835 Sevenin Street
Berkeley, CA 94710
www.KoffAssociates.com

kkaneko@koffassociates.com
Tel: 510.658.5633
Fax: 510.652.5633




September 25'™, 2017

Christina Dunn

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

Dear Christina,

Koff & Associates is pleased to present the Total Compensation Study Final Report to the Contra
Costa Employees’ Retirement Association (“CCCERA”). This report documents the market
compensation survey methodology, findings, and recommendations for implementation.

We would like to thank you for your assistance and cooperation without which this study could
not have been brought to its successful completion.

We will be glad to answer any questions or clarify any points as you are implementing the findings
and recommendations. It was a pleasure working with CCCERA and we look forward to future
opportunities to provide you with professional assistance.

Very truly yours,

Katie Kaneko
President

2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | www.KoffAssociates.com



Contira Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

LISTOF TABLES ..ttt et sttt se et et see e ]
APPENDICES .. et v o6m 5084585 5505 6 0550085655 v+ 30 65 o 4 00 58 00§ 455 50501450 5448 o603 s B Brn e oo nnen 1
EXECUTIVE SUMIMIAINY ..o e ee e e et e s e e e eneeeas e 2
BOCKGIOUN .......... o008 55415 o598 665 5550 Gokaiass buge s amromge esmeegonsa s grssgs sponns e os anss paaes sos soee snms 2
SUMMATY OF FINAINGS vttt ettt ea et ee e 2
STUAY PTOCESS ...ttt et st s e aes e 2
Benchmark Classifications............cccceveeveenee.e. o« RAR TR w7 55 B BB 1o oo B B e e s memee oo 2
COMPATATON AQENCIES. ...ttt r e st eese e eeteaesreseeeeerneaes 3
SAIArY ANA BENETiITS DO O .ottt re e e en e 4
DA CONBCHON ..o ioweguss a5 e oo ass 8085485 55 i a5 oo B oo 5 SR 50 s B+ Gl 6
Matching Methodology ........cccccvvennee. et bt et e e e et b e ee e raeeteeebeeeanteas 7
DA SPrEAUSNEETS........cociiiiiiieiiiiteirstreee st sereetesessens e seesssnnesassnsesanssssssssesssesas 7
Market Compensation FINAINGS ..ottt ee s e 8
BOISE SAIANY .ttt st ee e e e e nee e reeeeen 9
TOTAl COMPENSAHON ...ttt e e e e e et eeetesreenesenes 9
BENETITS ...ttt ?
Internal SAlary RelQtiONSIDS .....c.vi ittt er e 10
Recommendations .......c.cveecieciiceececececcecveee S BB B B i B 8450 B E R ST 43 e e 11
PAY PhIIOSOPNY ettt et sttt ste e e e see e e e eneeeaas 11
Proposed SOIANY STUCTUIE ... ciieisimmsmiisnioimisassvississ sussiiss fossiss oiaions stnbenanssnsansneenmesaens 11
Proposed Salary RANGE PIACEMENTS .....ovii et e e s 12
Options for IMPIEMENTATION ......ccviiececeecee e 12

Using the Market Data as a Tool



Contra Costa Employees’ Relirement Association

: es’
Table 1. Benchmark ClassifiCOtON.........oo it e, 3
Table 2. ComMPArator AQENCIES .........oviieiceieeeceeeeee e ee e e 4
Table 3. Market Compensation REsUItS SUMMIAIY......o.eeveeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e 8

Appendix I: Results Summary
Appendix ll: Market Compensation Findings
Appendix lll: Proposed Salary Range Schedule

Appendix IV: Salary Range Placement Recommendations



(

Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

Background

In July, 2017, Koff & Associates (“K&A”) conducted a comprehensive Total Compensation Study
for CCCERA. All compensation findings and recommendations are presented in this report.

This compensation review process was precipitated by:

> The concern of the Board of Directors and management that employees should be
recognized for the level and scope of work performed and that they are paid on a fair and
competitive basis that allows CCCERA to recruit and retain a high-quality staff;

> The desire to have a compensation plan that can meet the needs of CCCERA; and

> The desire to ensure that internal relationships of salaries are based upon objective, non-
quantitative evaluation factors, resuiting in equity across CCCERA.

The goals of the compensation study are to assist CCCERA in developing a competitive pay and
benefit plan, which is based upon market data, and to ensure that the plan is fiscally responsible
and meets the needs of CCCERA with regards to recruitment and retention of qualified staff.

Sumrmary of Findings
S

This report summarizes the study methodology, analytical tools, and the total compensation
(salary and benefits) survey findings. The results of the total compensation study showed:

» CCCERA’s base salaries, overall, in comparison to the market median is 1.3% above the
market.

» CCCERA’s total compensation, overall, in comparison to the market median is 5.5%
above the market.

> CCCERA’s benefits package puts CCCERA in a more competitive positon compared to the
market and, therefore, salary decisions should be based on total compensation versus
base salary market results.

> K&A considers a classification falling within 5% of the median to be competitive.

Y sy e b T T S
seNCNMark Classificarions

The study included nine (9) classifications, five (5) classifications were selected in order to collect
salary and benefits data within the defined labor market. Classifications that we would expect
to provide a sufficient sample for analysis were selected as “benchmarks” to use as the basis to
build the compensation plan. Benchmark classifications are those classifications that are
compared to the market, and these classifications are used as a means of anchoring CCCERA’s
overall compensation plan to the market. Other classifications not surveyed will be included in

2



T 2% iifal¥:
3 & | LR

ociation

£ o pmdns g e Eovesolmusm omvw? Dbl s sl A
Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement ;

the compensation plan and aligned to the benchmark classifications using internal equity
principles.

The benchmark classifications are listed in Table 1.

Table 1. Benchmark Classification

1. Abccour‘\.t‘i.ng Technfciah:

2. Executive Assistant

3. Member Services Specialist

4. Retirement Services Technician
5. Senior Retirement Counselor

P e W g a:‘ % ol LY Py P o £
Compardtor Agencies

Another important step in conducting a market salary study is the determination of appropriate
agencies for comparison. In developing the list of potential comparator agencies, K&A utilized
agencies that CCCERA approved and selected in the 2015 total compensation study. Agencies
were chosen based on the following factors:

1.

Organizational type and structure - It is generally recommended that agencies of a
similar size and providing similar services to that of the CCCERA be used as comparators.

When it comes to technical classes, the size of an organization is not as critical, as these
classes perform fairly similar work. The difference in size of an organization becomes
more important when comparing classes at the management level. The scope of work
and responsibility for management becomes much larger as an organization grows.
Factors such as management of a large staff, consequence of error, the political nature of
the job, and its visibility all grow with larger organizations. When it is difficult to find
agencies that are similarly sized, it isimportant to get a good balance of smaller and larger
agencies.

Similarity of population, staff, and operational budgets — These elements provide
guidelines in relation to resources required (staff and funding) and available for the
provision of services.

Scope of services provided — For the majority of classifications, it is important to select
agencies providing similar services. Organizations providing the same services are ideal
for comparators and most comparator agencies surveyed provide similar services to
CCCERA.

Labor market and geographic location — In the reality that is today’s labor market, many
agencies are in competition for the same pool of qualified employees. No longer do

3



T3 N & L
=

Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association
individuals necessarily live in the communities they serve. The geographic labor market
area, where CCCERA may be recruiting from or losing employees to, was taken into
consideration when selecting comparator organizations. Furthermore, by selecting
employers within a geographic proximity to CCCERA, the resulting labor market data
generally reflects the region’s cost of living, housing costs, growth rate, and other
demographic characteristics to the same extent as competing employers to CCCERA.

All factors mentioned should be considered in selecting the group of comparator agencies.
CCCERA agreed to a list of twelve (12) agencies.

Table 2. Comparator Agencies

Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Association

2. Central Contra Costa Sanitary District
3. City and County of San Francisco Retirement System
4. Contra Costa County
Contra Costa County Water District
6. East Bay Municipal Utility District
7. Orange County Employees Retirement System
8. Sacramento County Employees Retirement System
9. San Bernardino County Employees Retirement Association

10. San Diego County Employees Retirement Association

11. San Mateo County Employees Retirement Association

12. Ventura County Employees Retirement Association

Salary and Benefits Data

The last element requiring discussion prior to beginning a market survey is the specific benefit
data that will be collected and analyzed. The following salary and benefits data was collected for
each benchmark classification (the cost of these benefits to each agency was converted into
dollar amounts and can be found in Appendix Il [Benefit Detail] of this report; these amounts
were added to base salaries for total compensation purposes).



Contra Costa Employees’ Refirement Association

The top of the salary range and/or control point. All figures are presented on a monthly
basis.

& FERF W % ® L4 I - ) { e

The retirement reflects the benefits offered to the majority of the employees:
> PERS Formula: The service retirement formula.

» Enhanced Formula Cost: The baseline PERS formula is 2%@55. There is typically a
cost to the employer for offering a formula with a higher benefit than the baseline
formula. For each enhanced formula, the cost to the employer is based on a
percentage range calculated by PERS. K&A took the midpoint of the range and
multiplied the percentage by the top monthly salary to calculate the cost of the
enhanced formula. The percentage value for each enhanced formula is:

e 2.5%@55: midpoint of range =4.95%
e 2.7%@55: midpoint of range = 8.05%
e 3%@60: midpoint of range = 9.80%

> Employer Paid Member Contribution: The amount of the employee’s contribution to
PERS that is paid by the employer (Employer Paid Member Contribution).

> Single Highest Year: The period for determining the average monthly pay rate when
calculating retirement benefits. The base period is 36 highest paid consecutive
months. When final compensation is based on a shorter period of time, such as 12
months’ highest paid consecutive months, there is a cost to the employer. Similar to
the enhanced formula, the cost to the employer is based on a percentage range
calculated by PERS. K&A took the midpoint of the range (1.35%) and multiplied the
percentage by the top monthly salary to calculate the cost of the final compensation.

» Social Security: If an employer participates in Social Security, then the employer
contribution of 6.2% of the base salary up to the federally-determined maximum
contribution of $657.20 per month was reported.

> Other: Any other retirement contributions made by the employer.

Deferred compensation contributions provided to all employees of a classification with
or without requiring the employee to make a contribution is reported.

The employer paid premiums for an employee with family coverage was reported. The
employer paid insurances included:

» Cafeteria/Flexible Benefit Plan
» Medical



»]

“mployees’ R ociation

rement ;

Dental

Vision

Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (“AD&D”) Insurances
Long-Term Disability Insurance

Short-Term Disability Insurance

Other

>
>
>
>
>
>

Other than sick leave, which is usage-based, the number of hours off for which the
employer is obligated. All hours have been translated into direct salary costs.

> Vacation: The number of paid time off (or vacation) hours available to all employees
who have completed five years of employment.

» Holidays: The number of holiday hours (including floating hours) available to
employees.

> Administrative: Administrative (or management) leave is normally the number of
paid leave hours available to Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) Exempt and/or
management to reward for extraordinary effort (in lieu of overtime). This leave
category may also include personal leave which may be available to augment vacation
or other time off.

This category includes either the provision of an auto allowance or the provision of an
auto for personal use only. If a vehicle is provided to any classification for commuting and
other personal use, the average monthly rate is estimated at $450. Mileage
reimbursement is not included.

This category includes any additional other benefits not captured above available to all in
the class.

All of the benefit elements are negotiated benefits provided to all employees in the classification.
As such, they represent an ongoing cost for which an agency must budget. Other benefit costs,
such as sick leave, tuition reimbursement, and reimbursable mileage are usage-based and cannot
be quantified on an individual employee basis.

Data Collection

Data was collected during the months of July to August 2017, through comparator agency
websites, conversations with human resources, accounting, and/or finance personnel, and
careful review of agency documentation such as classification descriptions, memoranda of
understanding, organization charts, and other documents.



Matching Methodology

K&A believes that the data collection step is the most critical for maintaining the overall
credibility of any study and relied on CCCERA’s classification descriptions as the foundation for
comparison.

When K&A researches and collects data from the comparator agencies to identify possible
matches for each of the benchmark classifications, there is an assumption that comparable
matches may not be made that are 100% equivalent to the classifications at CCCERA. Therefore,
K&A does not match based upon job titles, which can often be misleading, but rather analyze
class descriptions before a comparable match is determined.

K&A’s methodology is to analyze each class description and the whole position by evaluating
factors such as:
» Definition and typical job functions;
Distinguishing characteristics;
Level within a class series (i.e., entry, experienced, journey, specialist, lead, etc.);
Reporting relationship structure (for example, manages through lower-level staff);
Education and experience requirements;
Knowledge, abilities, and skills required to perform the work;
The scope and complexity of the work;
Independence of action/responsibility;
The authority delegated to make decisions and take action;
The responsibility for the work of others, program administration, and for budget dollars;
Problem solving/ingenuity;
Contacts with others (both inside and outside of the organization);
Consequences of action and decisions; and

VVVYVYVVYVYVYVVYVYYVYYVYYVYYVY

Working conditions.

In order for a match to be included, K&A requires that a classification’s “likeness” be at
approximately 70% of the matched classification.

When an appropriate match is not identified for one classification, K&A often uses “brackets”
which can be functional or represent a span in scope of responsibility. A functional bracket
means that the job of one classification at CCCERA is performed by two or more classifications at
a comparator agency. A “bracket” representing a span in scope means that the comparator
agency has one class that is “bigger” in scope and responsibility and one class that is “smaller,”
where CCCERA’s class falls in the middle.

If an appropriate match could not be found, then no match was reported as a non-comparable

(N/C).
Daia Spreadsheets

For each benchmark classification, there are three information pages:



Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

» Top Monthly Base Salary Data
» Benefit Detail (Monthly Equivalent Values)
» Total Compensation Data

The average (mean) and median (midpoint) of the comparator agencies are reported on the top
monthly salary and total compensation data spreadsheets. The % above or below that CCCERA
is compared to the average and median is also reported.

The mean is the sum of the comparator agencies’ salaries/total compensation divided by the
number of matches. The median is the midpoint of all data with 50% of data points below and
50% of data points above.

In order to calculate the mean and median, K&A requires that there be a minimum of four (4)
comparator agencies with matching classifications to the benchmark classification. The reason
for requiring a minimum of four matches is so that no one classification has undue influence on
the calculations. Sufficient data was collected from the comparator agencies for 5 of the 5
benchmark classifications.

When using survey data to make salary range recommendations and adjustments, K&A
recommends using the median, rather than the mean, because the median is not skewed by
extremely high or low salary values.

The following table represents a summary of the market top monthly (base) salary and total
compensation (base salary plus benefits [retirement, insurance, leaves, and allowances])
findings. For each benchmark classification, the number of matches (agencies with a comparable
position) and percent above or below the top monthly salary market median and total
compensation market median is listed. The table is sorted by top monthly salary in descending
order from the most positive percentile (above market) to the most negative (below market).

Table 3. Market Compensation Results Summary

Retirement Services Technician b 5.1% 14.0%
Accounting Technician 12 3.3% 1.3%
Member Services Specialist 8 1.4% 6.0%
Senior Retirement Counselor 8 -1.4% 5.7%
Executive Assistant 12 -1.9% 0.3%




et

Ty . * o E 5 B my 7 gne’ | ~$ip Y 5 ry i - TaTeod
Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Associ

Base Salary
Top monthly salary market results show that three (3) classifications are paid above the market
median:

» Two (2) classifications are paid above the market median by less than 5%;
» One (1) classification is paid above the market median by more than 5% and less than 10%

Top monthly salary market results show that two (2) are paid below the market median:

> Two (2) classifications are paid below the market median by less than 5%

Generally, a classification falling within 5% of the median is considered to be competitive in the
labor market for salary survey purposes because of the differences in compensation policy, actual
scope of work, and position requirements. However, CCCERA can adopt a different standard.

R

Total Compensation

Total compensation market results show that all five (5) classifications are paid above the market
median:

> Two (2) classifications are paid above the market median by less than 5%;

» Two (2) classifications are paid above the market median by more than 5% and less than
10%; and

> One (1) classification is paid above the market median by more than 10% and less than
15%.

Total compensation market results show that no classifications are paid below the market
median. Overall, the differences between market base salaries and total compensation indicate
that CCCERA’s benefits package places CCCERA in a more competitive position. Further analysis
indicates that, on average, classifications are 1.3% above the market median for base salaries,
while that figure changes to 5.5% above the market median for total compensation, which is a
4.3% difference (i.e., CCCERA “gains” a 4.2% competitive position when taking benefits into
consideration).

Benefits

Further analysis of the market benefit data reveals the differences between CCCERA’s benefits
versus the comparator agencies:
> The Benefit formula offered by CCCERA for “classic” member employees is 2%@55. Three
(3) comparator agencies offer an equivalent benefit formula; four (4) agencies offer a
richer retirement benefit with three (3) comparators at 2.5%@55; one (1) comparator
agency at 2.7%@55; and four (4) agencies offer a lesser retirement benefit of 2%@60.
> Only four (4) comparator agencies offer the single highest year enhancement in order to
calculate retirement benefits.



i1

™ . &2

Conira Costa Employees’ Retirement A ion

> CCCERA offers a comprehensive insurance package, including health, dental, vision, and
life insurance; six (6) comparator agencies contribute less to health insurances; and six (6)
comparator agencies contribute more to health insurances.

> Five (5) comparators contribute to deferred compensation.

» Overall, the combination of employee retirement, insurance contributions, and deferred
compensation place CCCERA in a more competitive position within the market.

Building from the salary levels established for identified benchmark classes, internal salary
relationships were developed and consistently applied in order to develop specific salary
recommendations for all non-benchmarked classifications.

In the future, CCCERA may need to utilize internal alignment practices if the number of staff
grows and additional classifications are added or classifications change. While analyzing internal
relationships, the same factors analyzed when comparing CCCERA’s classifications to the labor
market are used when making internal salary alignment recommendations.

In addition, the following are standard human resources practices that are commonly applied
when making salary recommendations based upon internal relationships:

» A salary within 5% of the market average or median is considered to be competitive in
the labor market for salary survey purposes because of the differences in compensation
policy and actual scope of the position and its requirements. However, CCCERA can adopt
a closer standard.

> Certain internal percentages are often applied. Those that are the most common are:

* The differential between a trainee and experienced (or journey) class in a series
(I/N or Trainee/Experienced) is generally 10% to 15%;

* Alead or advanced journey-level (Il or Senior-level) class is generally placed 10%
to 15% above the journey-level.

e A full supervisory class is normally placed at least 10% to 25% above the highest
level supervised, depending upon the breadth and scope of supervision.

> When a market or internal equity adjustment is granted to one class in a series, the other
classes in the series are also adjusted accordingly to maintain internal equity.

Internal equity between certain levels of classifications is a fundamental factor to be considered
when making salary decisions. When conducting a market compensation survey, results can
often show that certain classifications that are aligned with each other are not the same in the
outside labor market. However, as an organization, careful consideration should be given to
these alignments because they represent internal value of classifications within job families, as
well as across the organization.

For the purposes of this study, K&A utilized market data to develop the salary recommendations
for all of the benchmarked classifications, and used internal equity principles to make the salary
recommendations for five (5) classifications that were not benchmarked. For the non-

10



 ~etrms Frmanlavese’
Costa eEmpilo yees Re

benchmarked classifications, internal alignments with other classifications will need to be
considered, either in the same class series or those classifications that have similar scope of work,
level of responsibility, and “worth” to CCCERA. Where it is difficult to ascertain internal
relationships due to unique qualifications and responsibilities, reliance can be placed on past
internal relationships. Itis important for CCCERA management to carefully review these internal
relationships and determine if they are still appropriate given the current market data.

It is also important to analyze market data and internal relationships within class series as well
as across the organization, and make adjustments to salary range placements, as necessary,
based on the needs of the organization.

CCCERA may want to make internal equity adjustments or alignments, as it implements the
compensation strategy. This market survey is only a tool to be used by CCCERA to determine
market indexing and salary determination.

Pay Philosophy

CCCERA has many options regarding what type of compensation plan it wants to implement. This
decision will be based on what CCCERA’s pay philosophy is, at which level it desires to pay its
employees compared to the market, whether it is going to consider additional alternative
compensation programs, and how great the competition is with other agencies over recruitment
of a highly-qualified workforce.

o L I -, T R S
Proposed Salary Structure

Currently, CCCERA has a salary structure for represented employees with salary ranges of varying
steps, two (2) classifications have eight (8) steps, two (2) classifications have seven (7) steps,
seven (7) classifications have six (6) steps, and two (2) classifications have five (5) steps with 5%
between each step. It is recommended that CCCERA create a structure with ranges that are
approximately 2.5% apart from one another, with each range containing five (5 steps) with 5%
between each step. Appendix Il contains the recommended salary range structure.

It is important to note that the salary range structure connects all salary ranges, and their steps,
by formula, thereby allowing for COLAs to be applied to only one-dollar figure in the table/matrix,
which then automatically updates the entire table. Due to the formula that connects each range
to the next (with 2.5% differentials between each range), there is a compounding effect when
drawing relationships that span several ranges. For example, with 2.5% differentials between
ranges, four ranges should represent a 10% differential. However, because the compounding
effect of 2.5%, on top of 2.5%, on top of 2.5%, and so on, the differential between Range 1 and
Range 5 is not exactly 10%, but it is slightly greater.

11



-~

sociation

Proposed Salary Range Placements

Appendix IV illustrates the proposed salary range placement for each classification based on the
market data as well as the internal relationship analysis. The recommendations are based on
total compensation market results. The following calculation was used:

1. Multiplied the CCCERA’s current top monthly salary by the percentage difference
between CCCERA’s base salary and the total compensation market median to calculate
the Market Placement Salary.

2. The classification was then placed within the proposed salary range with a Step 5 salary
closest to the Market Placement Salary.

K&A also modified the current internal alignment in certain instances where it seemed warranted
based on market-supported groupings and/or compaction issues.

For all classifications, this primary implementation procedure must be completed only at the
initial time of implementation. In the future, if CCCERA decides to implement annual across-the-
board cost of living adjustment increases, only the salary schedule that was developed and
included herein needs to be increased by the appropriate percentage, and each individual salary
range will move up with this adjustment. This will ensure that the internal salary relationships
are preserved and the salary schedule remains structured and easily administered.

EN AT e Far L Lo pvm om i om0 g
Options for Implementation

H

Overall, CCCERA’s total compensation is above the market median. When classifications are over
market, K&A typically recommends Y-rating employees whose current pay exceeds the maximum
of the recommended range until the market numbers “catch up” with their current salary. To Y-
rate an employee means to keep the employee’s salary frozen and to provide no salary increases
(including no cost of living adjustments) until the employee’s current salary is within the
recommended salary range. This will result in no immediate loss of income, but will delay any
future increases until the incumbent’s salary is within the salary range.

Other options to “freezing” a classification’s salary in place until the market catches up are:

> “Grandfathering” of salary ranges: This means that the salary range for the classification
is adjusted down to what the market numbers are. However, current incumbents would
continue being paid at the current rate of pay (which would put them outside of the new
and adjusted salary range for the class) until they separate from employment with
CCCERA. Any new-hires would be paid within the newly established salary range.

> Single-incumbent classes: If a class only has one incumbent, an option would be to wait
until the person separates from employment with CCCERA and then adjust the salary
range for the class according to the market.

> Recent hires: Some employees who have recently been hired may still be at one of the
lower steps within their current salary range. So, even if the top of their current salary
range is above market, the incumbents are currently still paid below the market maximum
because they are not at the top of their current salary range. In this case, an immediate

12



aud f Y e ¥~%ald B
i) el g IR

af S L TR ar N r ey ~ LSS Y o B e o g o g A
Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement .

salary range adjustment could be made to bring the salary range within the market. This
would bring the affected incumbents either to the top of the market range or very close
to it, but they would not technically be Y-rated or lose any pay.

Another option, of course, is to actually reduce salaries to the market median. However, from
an employee relations perspective this may not be a viable option.

K&A would like to reiterate that this report and the findings are meant to be a tool for CCCERA
to create and implement an equitable compensation plan. Compensation strategies are designed
to attract and retain excellent staff; however, financial realities and CCCERA’s expectations may
also come into play when determining appropriate compensation philosophies and strategies.
The collected data presented herein represents a market survey that will give CCCERA an
instrument to make future compensation decisions.

It has been a pleasure working with CCCERA on this critical project. Please do not hesitate to
contact us if we can provide any additional information or clarification regarding this report.

Respectfully submitted by,

Koff & Associates

Katie Kaneko

President

13



Total Compensation Study - Final Report
Conftra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

Appendix |

Resulis Summary



1 Jo | ebey

%S'S ‘JOVHIAVY %21 ‘AOVHIAY %E’L ‘FOVYIAY %9°€- ‘HOVHIAY
8 %L'S 0.5'8$ %€°0- 211'6$ 060'6$ %' L- 162°G$ %L'8- FAEACES 812'G$ JOjasuUNo) juswaliley Jouss
L %0°%1 2.0'L8 %18 16G°L$ 222'3% %L'S GEL'VS %EC G/8'v$ 686'v$ UBDIUYDS | SBDIAISS Juawainey
8 %09 9v5'8$ %L’ 986'8$ 060°6$ %V'L 0v9'6$ %L'9- 001'9$ 812'G$ Jsieioadg saoIAIRS IaquIsly
4% %E0 88¥'01$ %0°€- LE8'0LS L1G°0L$ %86 L- 1¥0°L$ %SG'C- 980°.L$ 916'9% jue)sissy aAlnoexX3
cl %E°L 879°8$ %20 1G.'8$ 99.'8$ %E'E ¥91°G$ %Vv'C- 80v'S$ ovy'G$ uelRIUYd3 | Bununoddy|
sayoen mojaq mojaq dwon mojaq mojaq Aiejeg
jo# 10 aA0qe 9, uelpap 10 anoqe %, abeiany Alyyuop jejo] | 10 aAoqe v, uelpap 10 dAOqR Y%, abelaay Ayuow doy uopeoyisseln

ejeq dwod Ajyjuop |ejor

ejeq Auejes Ajyyuop doy

1oz Ainpe
Arewuwng sjinsay
uopeldossy juswainay ,seakojdwz Ajuno)H eyson enuon




Total Compensation Study - Final Report
Conftra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

Appendix I

Market Compensation Findings



LT T2 60 @31¥0S Ajyauon doj 1| xipuaddy vy3300

G jo el abed

10jesedwod uop - O/N

V43000 9pnjoxe suoienofed |iy 310N

gL €L S3YJJe JO JaquunN
%E’¢ %C'S Moj2g/aA0qy YH3DDD %
892°6$ ¥9L‘s$ siojesedwo) o uelpay
%V'C- %L°0 MO[9g/A0qY YHIDDD %
8.5's$ 80v's$ s10jeledwon jo aberany
umouun umouzun 1102/£2/9 8/8v% %86 R R 1stierdads buiunodoy Juswallay uoleloossy juswaley seakoldwy AQuno) obaig ues ¢}
umouun umouyun 1102/242 G/6'v$ %G/ 829'v'$ uepIuY29} Bugunodoy walsAg awamay saeakodwy AQunoy sbueln  zZL
%0G°¢ 8L0e/l/L 2102/2/L 144X°TS PrL'GS uediuyoa | Bupunodoy uoneIoossy juswaiey seafoldwy Aunod epswely L1
%E 810¢/4/L L102/1/L ¥91'e$ ¥91°'G$ ueniuyoa ] Bununodoy Aunog ejsog eAUOD 0L
%S} 8Loz/vL/L 2102Z/GL/L 181°'S$ %L'8 TLLYS ueroluyoa | bununoooy UOREID0SSY JUsIdINey saakojdw3 Aunod einjusp 6
umouyun umougun 1102/52/9 £vZ'6e %86 Gl.'v$ uepluyda} Bugunoooy wolsAg Juswauey seskojdwy Auno) ojuswenes 8
Xew %¢ |dD 8L02/L/L 910Z/¥e/el 892°'S$ %S'LL GTL'YS [BOSI4 UBIDIUYDS | BURUNOIDY  UOKBIDOSSY JusWaIay seako/dw Auno) oulpleuseg ues L
umouun umouyun L102/11L 8.2°G$ 8/2°G$ 3}19(0 JUNo2IY wis)sAS Juswaisy 0dsjouely ueg AunoD/AND 9
%E-C £102/8/01 9102/61/01 062'G$ 062'G$ 11 ueiuyoa | Bununoooy Juswaiey uoneloossY Juswainay saakoldw3 Auno) osje ues G
L102/VIL avv's$ arv'ss ueldluyday Hununosdy uoneldossy 14
juswaiay ,sevkojdwg Junos e3soH eijuo)
umouxun umouyun L102/1V 1L vL1'9% vL1'9% 11 343D JUNo22Y ouisiqg Jajep Auno) ejsod enuod €
umonjun umounun 9102/9L/¥ ¥G8'0$ ¥58'9$ uepIuYoa | Buhunoddy puIsIg Aunn jedidiuny Aeg ise3 Z
umouyun umouun 1102/8L/¥ 609'/% 609°2% |1l ueuyda | Bugunosoy Jouysiq Areyues Auno) ejso) eRuo) [eiuaD ]
asealdu) asealou| ajeq fejeg Aejeg 9L sse|D Aouaby iojesedwon yuey
abejuaalagd Kiejeg aAnoeyg deyg dol Jloge Ayuopy
8N ON pasnipy  jo3sop dol

ueldiuydsa) bupunosoy

uoleId0SSY Juawaldy ,seakojdwy AJunos e3sos eIjuOD

210z Ainp
ejeq Aiejes Ajyjuopy doj




LT 1T 60 112120 2142029 () x)puaddy wy300D

§ jo q| abed

'suoiun ay} Ag paJslsiuiLPE eq 0} sI pue [Bjluaq 3 ‘UOISIA ‘AIlIgesIQ wia ] BuoT ‘eoueINsU| B)1T O JS00 aU} SI9ACD JUNoWY :SH3 AIUNoD oBuBIO -
‘weisboud spyauaq [euswaelddng - N Aeg jsel -¢
"swiwend Jieys Bunenuuoyes ARusino aie Asu} asneseq 10z Wou papiaod ojel Jeld “yy3 Aluno) osjep Ues -7

'GLOZ Ul Apnis snolreud e woy ase sejes gL PUB 8oueInsUy a1 S yy3 Aluno) obeig ues -|

*BuipunoJ @ SEINWIOY |39 0) anp sjuauodwod S)) Jo Wns sy} Woly ARyBls Aea Aew Jaquinu uonesusdwo) AJIUop [e)o) 8loN

[1e1aq spyaueg

uojjerdossy juswaiay ,saakojdwig AJunos ejso) enuod

£56'9$ 106'8$ §90°2$ L0v'28 18928 vse'Ls Ly'LLS S¥5'6$ §89'8¢ 9.1'8$ £EL'eLs 8v9'ss 992'8$ *dwod Ajyuol |ejo
99L°1$ L19'e$ 181°2$ 6€L°2$ yv'es 61828 285'v$ Lg'e$ 1z5'e$ 8682 $25's$ yo5'cs oze'es 150D Jyjauag
£fyaabuon
SL$ Ll o]
16% €58 458 0SL$ [4A4 0si$ uopesuadwo) pausjeq
dauemo|jy wiojiuf
Jouemoj|y oIny
6C$ aAnessILWpY
174 s [ 4] ¥8c$ [4X4 0ezs 56€$ 60e$ 6615 soe$ 08¢e$ 8/2% vies shepiion
62€% 9zes 182$ ¥0e$ zoes £15% S6€% 89°€0VS 86C% Soes 89¥$ 8/2% vies uojesep
AR
4] , 43410
1as/als
98 13 81$ 0zs 6L$ 9z$ a1l
€8 % 1$ €$ 1$ 218 [443 1$ v$ %43 8 F4%3 L
SL$ as ¥es$ 218$ 83 uoIsIp
98$ 12$ GZLs vees 918 18 6/L$ 5028 12433 691$ fejuaq
29e'Ts 920'L$ 8LY'L$ TLeLs zio'es 106°L$ 0P8 092'1$ 0zL'es 105°2$ Wwe'L$ unesH
2618 16e'L$ 001$ euajajed
aoueansu]
42410
zzes 8ces coes 5zes 80€$ sevs €8€$ ozes £2e8 61€$ gees Aunoag jeroog
1753 £8$ 0.8 €018 vi$ Auejes 3saybiH yuow z1
6G1% 69€$ 29% qUIUOD JqUIBN pled ¥
851%- 181$- L¥zs 09l ¢- Qovs 6£€$ 90€% 191$- 1618 enuod S¥3d padueyuy
09@%Z 090%z SSO%GZ S5O%Z 09@%2 S50%LT SSO%ST SSO%ST SSO%Z 090%Z S5O %C 090 %Z §5®%C B|nuuoy Sy3d
JuawaRY sakojdwz
281'GS 06Z'5$ 8/8'7$ 892'$ £r2's$ G/6'v$ $58'0$ v.1'9% voL'Ge 8/2'6$ 609'/$ ryi'ss app'ss Aaejes Ajyuow doyt|
ueloIuyos ;. 1| uBOIIYDa | isiieads feosly UEPDIUYDS | uejoluyos | UBDIUYOSL  |IM8|DIUN0%dY  UBRUYOS] MBID UNODOY ||| UeIouyoa | uepluyos | ueILYd3 | Bupunoaoy L ssepd)|
Bugunoaoy Bununoooy Bununoooy uenuyss | Bununodoy Bununosoy Bupunoosoy Bununoooy Bugunoooy Bununooay
Jswaley wawaley Bununosoy
bl v 0 v ) v A uoneldossy
uole|d0SSY N N A > waysig wasAg 1PUISIg ol
wewaey jusawiainay Ewﬁo‘_.muux Eu.w_omumz u:aﬁo._._.uum JuswaIney joms1a Ann pusia funos Juswamey fepueg juswaey uonjeia0ssy
saakojdwy jdw3 S jdw3z 1dw3z Jedislunpy 1ep fjunon saakojdwg Juawainay ,saakojdwz
saafojdwz soafojdwz €JS0D BNJU0D  0JSIduBi4 UeS  AJunod ejson
fAunod funon funon funon Keg jse3 BJS0D BJJUOD funon funo) ejso) esuon
funo) eanyuap funo) abueip Aunog/Ang  exuod fenuan
o3jely ueg of21q UBS  oulplewsag UBS  OjJuIWERIIES epawefy Kouoby]
ueIg1uyds3) Bununoooy)|
L0z finp



LT 1T 60 G31¥0S dwo) Ajyauo |eio] { xipuaddy yy3300

G jo 2| abey

Jojesedwo) UoN - O/N

vd3000 8pn|oxa suoienored jiy 310N

<l saydje Jo JaquinN
%’ mojag/anoqy vy3009 %
819°8$ siojesedwio) jo ueipapy
%C0 mojag/eroqy YH3000 %
162‘8% siojesedwo)) jo abelany
%S’L 8L02/¥LIL 2102/5L/1 €66'9% UBIOIUYOS ] bulunoddy uoneroossy juswaley sesholdwy fjuno einusp €|
umouyun umouyun /102/£2/9 G90'/$ isljeroadg Bugunodoy Juswaliey uoijeIdossy Juswallay seshoidwg Aluno) obaig ueg z)
umouun umouyun 21021242 $Se'/$ uedluyoa] Bupunodoy weysAg Juswaiey seakoldw3 Aunon ebuelp |y
XeWw %z 1d0 8L0¢/L/L gLozivereL  Lov'L$ [e0sl4 ueioluyoa ] Bununosoy  uonepossy Juswalney ssakoldwy AJUnog oulpieusag ues g}
umouun umouyun 2102/52/9 189'/$ uepiuyos] buunosoy wa)sAg Juswaigey seakojdw3 Aunog ouswerseg 6
umouun umouun 21022 9/1'8% 39D JUNoooYy we)sAg Juswainey odasduel{ ueg AJunon/AND 8
%0G°¢ 810¢/1/L 2102/e/L 8v9'8$ uesjuyss | Buyunosoy uoneIoossY Juswamay saakoldwz Auno) epswely L
%€ 8L0¢c/L/L 2102/L1L G89's$ ueroluyda | Buyunoddy Aunog ejso) enuod 9
LV0Z/VIL 9928 uepdtuyss) Bugunoosoy uopeossy S
juswauney ,seakojdwz Auno) e}so) enuon
%€-¢ £2102/8/0L  9102/6L/0L 106'8% I ueoluyos | Bununodoy Juswaljey uojjeroossy juswalay seshojdw Auno) osjely ues 14
umoudun umouun L102/VIL S¥S'6$ 11 4310 JUN0d0Y ousIq Jejep Aunod ejso) enuo) €
umouxun umouxun 9L0C/9Ly  Lyv'LLS ueiuyoa | Bujunoooy omsig Amnn fedunyy Aeg yse3 4
umounun umounun 210281y egL'els 1l uerluyoa Bugunoooy ousig Aeyues Aunod ejsed enuod [enus) l
aseassu| asealoau ajeq dwo) oj)1] sse|n Aoueby Jojesedwion uey
abejuaoiayg Kiejeg aA9YT Ayuopw
JIXeN JIXaN 1ejol

uelsuysa)] bununosoy

£10Z Ainp

ejeq uonesuadwon Ajyjuol jejol

uojjeoossy juswadnay ,seafkojdwz fjunos e}soH eUOYH



LT T2 60 @31L¥0S Alyauo do 1) xipuaddy vy¥322D

G Jo ez abey

JUBOEA UOIISOd,
Jojesedwod uoN - /N

V43000 9pnioxs suonenoled Iy 3 LON

(43 [4’ Sayodjel Jo JaquinN
%6}~ %L'¢ Mojg/aA0qY YHID0D %
1¥0°2$ 099°'9$ siojesedwod jo uelpaly
%S¢ %60 Mmojag/eAoqy Y3020 %
980°2% 168°9% siojesedwo) jo abelany
umowun umouxun 2102/S219 609'G$ %86 801'S$ Aiejaioag aAnoaxy wajsAg wawainey seskoidw3 Ajuno) ojuswernesg el
umouun umousun L1021 891'9¢% %G/ 8¢/'6$ )| Aiejainag aAnnoaxy weysAg Juswaunay seakoldwy Aunoy ebuesny  ZL
umouun 8Loe/L/L L10Z/VL 8l 8vl'9¢ I OVO 3y} 0} JUB}SISSY 8AlNdaX3 Aunog eysop enuoy 1)
%St 8L0T/vLIL 2102/S1/L 9€5'9% %L'8 €10'9$ [eluapyuoD Al Juelsissy Juswabeuepy uoneloossy Juswalnay seakoldw3 Aunog emnuepn, 0L
umousun umousun 1102/€2/9 $89°'9% %86 180'9% Alejai0ag aAnoexg Juswaliley UoHeIN0SSY Juswalney saakojdwg Auno) obsig ues 6
%E-C £102/8/01 910z/61/0L 125'9% L15'9% [enuapyto) Arejasoag aalnoexg Juswalley uoneIoossy Juswaley seshoidws Ajuno) osely ues 8
LLOZ/V/L 916'9$ 916°9$ JUB)SISSY 8AlIN0aX] uofjerdossy .
juswainey seskojdwz fHuno) eyso) eiuon
umouyun umousupn LL02/VIL oLy'.$ oLy'2e || Aueje109g 2ANOSXg welsAg Juswaley oosiouel ueg AlunonyAun 9
Xew %2 1d0 81L02/L/1L aLoeiverzL ¥25'L$ %S L L 8v.'9$ JUBISISSY SANNDSXT  UORBIOOSSY Juswaliley sevkojdws Auno) oulpseulsg ues S
umouqun umouun L10Z/8LiY oic'es oLz'ss juelsISsy aAnnoax3 PUIsig Aejiues Auno) ejsod eauog [enua)d 14
umounun umouun olLoz/oLY 1G6°L$ 1G6'L$ 11 juessissy sAnpnoaxy ousia Ann fediouniy Aeq jse3 €
umouun umouxun 9102/c/L 9v6'/$ ov6'/$ V30V AElsIoss aanoexg UoHeID0SSY Juswalley saakoidw Ajunos) epswe)y 4
umounun umounun 9102/82/6 8/2'8$ 8.2'8% JUBJSISSY SAljRASIuIWPY PUISIQ 19YepA BJSO) enuo) l
asealou| asealou] ajeg Kejeg Kiejeg o)L sse|n Aouaby uojesedwo) Huey
abejuadiag fiejeg oAnday3 deygdo) Joqe] Ayuop
IXaN IXaN pasnfpy  jo3sop doy

JUB}SISSY 9AINIAX]

2102 Aing

ejeq fiejeg Ajyyuop doy

uoie1d0ssy juawaiiey ,seahojdwz funoy elson enuon




LT T2 60 |1219Q 3yauag || Xtpuaddy ¥y3D00

S 0 qz abegq

“suoun sy} AQ pauslsiuILLPE 8q 0} SI puB [elua 3 'UOISIA AHIqeSIQ uus )t BuoT ‘soueinsuj a4 4O JSO9 BY) $I9A0D JUNOWY ;ST Aunod sbuel( -y

‘welboid syjesuaqg feawaiddns - gnNi Aeg 1se3 -

‘swriwayd sjey) Bunenuiioses Ajuelino sue Asy) asneseq G0z woyy papiroid sjel jely (T Aunod osien ues -z

“Buipuno g sejnuwioy |I82 0} 8NP sjusUCdWod s} Jo WNs ay) woy ARYBIs Alea Aew Jequinu uogesuadwon AIYIIOW JB101 810N

"G1L0Z Ul Apmis snoinaud e woly aJe sejes g1 PUE souBINSU| 8y S,v43 Aunog oBaig UBS -|

zzh'es S8Z'0L$ 8.1°6$ €e9'LLS 9L1's$ 008°'8$ 882718 992°7L$ 191018 169°0L$ Zvo'vLs 8EPTLS 215018 ‘dwo) Ajyuop _Eo._._
985°2$ vLL'es (%43 60L'v$ 205°C$ 2£9'C$ 182'v$ 88p'v$ cLo0'v$ 182'¢$ 2£8'sS z6v'vs 109'c$ isod Egj
Aynabuoq
5.8 £ 49W0
9618 99% 98€'L$ Lees 0518 60S$ 0si$ uopesuadwo) palsejeq
AUBMOYlY Wwioyun
Jouemol|y ony
¥9$ 8/2% G6$ [ 4%4 SAljesjsiunupy
222% €0e$ vEES SOv$ 162% [e1:74 65v$ 1454 9e2$ 8zvs Liv$ 85v$ 66¢$ shepljoH
S06% 0r$ 98€% VEYS vees L9 65¥$ 699% GSES 8cyvs G0G$ 857$ 66¢€$ uofjesep
anea
z5$ ,42W0
ias/aLs
8v$ 4% 8¢ ocs T4 pras 6€$ ¥Zs$ 74 a1
€3 1453 1$ ¥$ 13 0z$ 2zs A v$ 1e$ s$ (4% Lam
SL$ 1433 ¥Z$ 113 8$ uolsip
901$ 1z$ er4% 244 v9L$ 11$ 618 502$ vZL$ 691$ lejuaq
28E'2$ ov0'L$ aLr'Ls [Ara% zLo'es £06'L$ 90’z 09.°1$ 0zL'es 105'2$ 6L ujjeay
4743 1SE'LS 0zz$ eURjajeD)
Ioueansuj
1210
So¥$ L0¥$ 14543 8res 28€8 £6v$ €156$ 18€$ 65v$ £6¥$ 6Zv$ Ayunoag jervog
2018 F44% £8$ LLLg £6$ Kaejes 3saybiH uow z1
6.9% 8ves feforay quuod JIquisy pied Y3
6618 008 Lees LLLS- L6v7$ v6€$ oLv$ 9zes- e ejpulog S¥3d padueyu3
090Q%2 09@%Z SEO%GT SSO%Z 090%2 S5@%LT SSO%ST S5O%S'T S55@%Z 090%2 S5O%Z 09@%Z §50%2 e|nuLog SY3d
juawalay dakojdwg
9€5'0$ L25'9% ¥89'98 v25'L8 609'6$ 89}'9% 156'2$ 8.7'8% 8vL'93% oLr'L$ oLz'es 9v6'L$ 916'9$ Auejes Ajyjuow doy|
|enuspyuo) |eruapyuoD) fejsioag JUBJSISSY Kejosnag 1 Aejerag |l juelsissy Juejsissy 11OV 1t Kiejesosg juejsissy vy30oV Jue)SISSY aAnoaxy apL sse|n
Al ugisissy Kejaioag annosxy aANoex3 aapnoexy BANoaXy JANISX] SAjeNSILIWPY  8Y) O} JUB)SISSY BANNSX] aAnnsaxy Kejoroeg
Juswabeuepy BARNoaxg Juswaley aANOeX3 annoex3y
uswsuney
uoyey v ne) v ney v wajshs uopelvossy
o v Juswainey JuawianIay JusWwaNey yuawaanay walshs oS Anun Jou3sIg wajss JaLsia juawiainay uojjeroossy
JUEINEIIEM] P PR PR P FUETIEI MY e . funon Juawaley Kieyueg : bl
3 S99 rediounpy Jarepm Ajunon saakojdwz JuswWaIRdY ,seafojdwy
saalojdwgy sasdojdwzy BJSOD BNUOD  0Is|ouRIj ues  A3uno) ejsod
f3unos eamuap Auno) Aunog fjunod funoo funog sbueig Aeqise3 i hein Aunoo/Ano  enuod fesuay Anod Awno e1s03 exu0d
0dje} ueg obaig ueg oulpieulag ueg ojudweIdeg S epawely £ 5
Juaby|

JUBISISSY 9ANDAXT

2102 Ainp
llejeQ sjysueg
uonerd0ssy juswalney ,sasfojdwz Ajuno) eysos vijuoH




L1 TT 60 3140S dwod Alyauo 2101 | xtpuaddy vy330D

G Jo 27 abed

J0)e1RdWOYD UON - J/N

V3000 8pnjoxs suonendes iy ‘310N

ZL Sayoje Jo JaquinN
%¢E€0 Mojdg/aAoqy VY3000 %
88t'01$ siojesedwod jo ueipay
%0°¢- Mojag/enoqy vy3029 %
LE€8°0LS siojesedwon jo aberany
umounun umoudun 1102/52/9 911'8% Kieja109g aAndaxg waysAg Jusweainey ssshojdwg Ajuno) ojusweldeg cl
umouxun umounun 21021412 008'8$ Il Aeyaroag aAnoaxy wayshg Jusweiay seakojdwg Aunoy abuelp z
%S’L 8L0C/vLIL ZL0g/SLL zzl'6$ [enuspyuog A juejsissy juswabeuepy uoneloossy Juswainay seskoidws Aunod eimusp L)
umouyun umouyun 1102/£2/9 8/1'6% Kiejeioeg aapnoax3 Juswaley uofjeloossy Juswamay seafojdw3 Ajunoy obaig ueg Q|
umouyun 8L0¢/LiL LL0g/LL 19L°01$ I OV 8y} 0} JuejsISsSy SANdaX3 Aunod ejso) ejjuoH 6
%€-C £10¢/8/01 9102/61/01  §82'0L$ [enuapyuod Aejeioas aanoex3 juswaimey uonjenossy Juswalney seshojdwz Ajuno) osjep ueg 8
L102/LiL 115013 jue}sIssy aAlpndaxy uoneloossy L
Juawaunay ,seskojdwz fHunoy eJso) enuoH

umouyun umouxun 2102/L12 169'01% || Aueyar0ag aalnoaxy WigsAg Juswainey odsipuel4 ueg Aunon/AND 9
Xew %2 1dO 8L0¢/L1L oLoZiveieL  €e9'LLS JUBISISSY 8ANJSX3  UOQEIDOSSY Judwalley sevhojdw3 Ajuno) oulpieuleg ueg S
umousiun umouun 9L02/s/1 gev'eLs V30V Aiejaioag aanoexy uoneIoosSsYy Juswainay seakojdwg Alunog epawely ¥
umouun umouyun 9L02/9L/y  8EL'CLS 11 Juelsissy aAlInoaxy osig Annn [edoiuniy Aeg 1seg €
umouxun umonjun 9L02/82/6  99.°Z1$ JUBlSISSY SAnRlSIUILPY PuIsIg J9rep Aunog eyso) enuo)d Z
umouxun umouun 210280y Z¥O'vL$ JUEJSISSY 8AlNdaX] s Aepues Aunod eso) enuo) [enus) l

asealau| aseasau| ajeq dwop |} sse|n Aoueby iojeredwion uey

abejuaolsayg Aiejeg aAoalg Alyuopw
JIXON 1X3N |ejol
Juelsissy aAN2axg
210z Ainp

ejeq uonesuadwosn Ajyjuo jejol

uonBId0SSY Judwayay ,seakojdwy fHuno) eyso) esuo)



£T T 60 A3LY0S Ajyiuow doy ) xipuaddy wy3300

G jJo eg abey

J0jeredwo) UON - D/N

V3000 apnjoxa suolenoed |y 310N

8 8 SaYoJe JO JaquinN
%¥°L %99 MO|3g/3A0QY YHIDDD %
0v9's$ ove'ss siojesedwo) Jo uelpaly
%L'9" %L~ MOJ28/9A0qY VHIDID %
001L°9% ¥82°6$ siojeredwog jo aberaay
O/IN Aunod ejsop ejuon g
OIN 1UsIq Alejues Aunod Bjso) ejuOD [BAUSD  ZL
OIN oulsiq Jsjep Aunod eso Bjuo) L)
OIN ouisig Aunn ledpiuniy Aeg ise3 o1
umouyun umouyun 1102/£2/9 8/8'v$ %8'6 Shy've SJBI00SSY S9IINISS JSqUISIA JUSWBINSY UoIeId0SSY Juswiaay seafojdwg Auno) obaig ueg 6
umouun umowqun 2102/52/9 061°S$ %86 LZL'v$ 11 1sl|eoadg syauag juswainay waysAg Juswaunay seafoldw3 Auno) ojuswerdes 8
umouyun umouyun 1102/L11 9/£'6$ %G/ 100'5$ 1sl|evads weiboid Juswaley WaJSAS Juswaley saakojdwg Aunog abuel A
Xew %z¢ 1d0 8L0g/L/L aLoeverzL 118'G$ %S L JARALS Isileloads Jusweaey  UoeIN0SSY Juswallay seakoidw Auno) oulpieuseg ues 9
%05°¢ 8L0e/L/L 2102/2iL £9¥'GS$ £€o¥'G$ 11 1slje10ads wawamesy uonerdossy juswialay saskojdwy Alunod epawery S
L102/1iL 8LL's$ 8L2's$ Isijerdadg sadjaIag JaquIsiy uopeyossy 14
Juswaiay ,saakojdwz fHjuno) eyson enuosn
%E-C L102/8/01 9102/6L/0L  185'9% 18G'9% IsAleuy Juswauay uoijeioossy juswainay saakojdwy AHuno) osiepy ueg €
umouun umounun L102/L €2e'L$ €2€'L$ IsAleuy juswamay juejsissy wia)sAg Juswauyey odspuel ues Aunod/AD 4
%S’ 81L0Z/7L/L L102/G L1 v91°8% %L'8 016°L$ 1| Jojensiuwpy weiboid uoleIoosSY Juawalay saakoldwg AJuno) einjuap L
asealou| asealoau| aleq fiejeg Aejeg AL sse|d Adueby iojesedwion yuey
obejuasiad Kiejeg aAnday3 dayg doj 1oqe] Ayuopy
IxaN IXaN paysnipy  jo3son do)

1s1|e192dg S991A13S JOQUIDA

210Z Ainp

ejeq Auejeg Alyjuop doy
uoljerdossy juswalnay seakordwz fHunoy e1s0H BIU0H




LT TZ 60 I1e33Q 1auag || xipuaddy vy3I00

‘suolun ay) Ag pausisiuiwpe 8q o} Si PUB [BJua( @ ‘UOISIA ‘Al

G Jo qg abeq

esiq wis] Buo ‘aoueinsul 8417 JO JSO2 8Y} S18A09 JUnowy :§y3 Ajuno) abuelq) -¢

'stwnjwed J1ay) Bueinuuoiel Ajus.uns aie Asy) asnessq 610z wouy pepiacid siel jeld4 wy3 Aluno) osie ues -z
'G1L0Z Ut Apnis snolaaid e woyy aue sejel 017 PUB 80UeINsU| 847 S,yy g Ane) ofsig ues -

“Buipunos g senwoy |je0 0} 8np sjuauodwod s) Jo Wns sy woly ARyblis Aea Aew Jequinu uonesusdwod AJYIUCH [B101 BJoN

902Z°'LL$ 0Lv'01$ $90°L$ 690'8$ 529'L$ 0y8'L$ OIN OIN OIN 165018 OIN 220'6$ 060°6$ dwos Alypuop _th_
zro'es £88'cS 18128 25228 SEV'ZS or'e$ OIN OIN N 892'c$ O/N 655°e$ zie'es 1509 Wauag|
Ayaabuo
12430
Svee 99% €9% 1K 5 uoesuadwo) pauageq
asueMo||y wiojiun
asuemolly ony
aAneSILIUPY
SpeES voes 1474 €LeES 6928 i t444:3 562% oees shepioH
OEL'LS Sov$ 1828 9ees 6628 865% f444 S62% oees uojesep
anea
z6$ £ 42U0
1as/a1s
09% 91$ .8 128 a1l
€$ 43 1$ €% 1$ v$ ¥$ t4% L
Sl$ 9% 8% uolsIp
98% 128 o4k} 6.1% 124%3 691$ 1eyusq
Z8E'C$ 920°+$ 81p'L$ 2.T1e 09/'L$ 10S'Z$ 1v6°LS yiesH
2548 16e°L$ eusajed
aaueInsy)
BY0
905$ 80¥$ 2oe$ zzes £ee$ 112" 6£€$ §9¢€$ Kunosg |ejoog
6.8 118 Kiejes 3soybiH wuow z1
861% L0VS quiu0) Jaquialy pred y3
6v2%- 10Z%- L¥Z$ 851%- €EVS £zes- £91$- ejnuioy §3¥3d pasueyuly
090%2 090%Z SSO%ST S5@%T 090%2 S5@%.°T 09@%2 090%Z S5®%z B|nuliog S¥3d
JuswWaINAY aakojdwg
roL's$ 185'9$ 8/8'v$ £18'G$ 06l'c$ 9/€'s$ €7€'L$ £9v'S$ 81L's$ Krejes Ajyyuow doy|
1f Joresswpy 1sAleuy sjerossy isieroads 111s)jeads isife1osds 2N JIN IIN 1shleuy JIN I1isieoads | isierdadg sasiniag Jaquisy aplL ssepd)
wesboid wawaJney $90IAISG pIVENTEIN N sjjauag weibold Juswaley Jswaley
Jequisy wawaley wawaInsy JE)SISSY
Juawalley
1C € A
tonerossy :M_u__”__w.”mM< _ ....ME.H. B} " ::ME.Q_ & y :oEm‘__w wisishs oLsIg A3 LIET uisishs sia :MMM__MMMQ uoneIdoss
Juswainey ¥ ey ¥ noy 3 ey ¥ B eey 1S nn Jomsig fsunos susWEINTY fuepues ¥ noy neIvossy
saakojdwy saakojdwg soakojdwz saakojdwzg Jedisiunpy Jajepp fyunon saakojdwig Juawaiay ,savkojdwy
saafojdwy saakojdwig B}SOQ BJjUOCD  03SIdLeI4 UBS  AJUno) B)S0H
Aunogn fQunon Aunog fQunop Aeg jseg BJS0D BJUOD funop fQunog eyson enuodn
Ajunog eanjuap Kunog abueio Aunooy/An enuod jenusn
oajep ueg ofisig ueS  oulpleusag ueg  OjUBWIRIORS epswely Kousby]

1sije1oodg s9d1A198 JoqUIBN

L10Z Ao
Itejeq spjsusg
uoneldossy juawainay ,seshojdwg fHunoy elson ejjuoH



LT 12 60 431405 dwo) Ajyjuo je1o] | xipuaddy v¥30DD

G Jo o¢ abey

Jojesedwor) UonN - O/N

Vd3000 9pnpxa SUoenoles Iy 310N

8 sayojep jo JaquinN
%09 mojag/enoqy V30090 %
9v5'8$ siojesedwiod Jo uelpap
%L1 moj3g/anoqy Y3000 %
986°8$ siojesedwon Jo abelaay
DIN omsig Ausn |edoiuny Aegiseg ¢
OIN Joussiq Jslep unog ejsoD enuo) gL
JUBJSISSY 9AN0aX] Aunoj eysop ejjuon |
OIN Jouisiq Atejiueg Ajunog es0) BAjUOD [ejua) QL
umouxun umouyun 1102/€2/9 690'/9% B)eI00SSY S80IAISS JIaqUIB JUSLWBIRY uoieINoSSY JusLalley seakojdw3 funos obsiq ueg 6
umouun umouun 1102/52/9 GZ9'/$ 11 1slje10ads sjyauag juswalley weysAg Juswalney saskojdw Ajuno) ojusweloeg 8
umowqun umouyun 11021212 ove'l$ 1slje10adg welbold juswalnay woysAg Juswalay seskoidwz Aunos sbuelQ /
Xew %z 1d0 8L0g/H1L 9102/v2/cl  690'8$ Isieloadg Juswaisy  UOHEINOSSY Juswailay sesko|dw3 Aunod oulpleussg ueg 9
%0S°€ 8L0¢/LiIL 2102721 220'6$ 1l sijeoadg juswainey uonerdossy juswaigey ssakojdws Auno epswely S
L10Z/VIL 060°6$ Isijerdadg sadiAleg Jequidly uonerossy 14
Juswaiay ,seafojdwz QHunos e3so)H esuon
%E-C £102/8/0L  9102/6L/0L  0/¥'01$ Ishjeuy uswalney uoljeioossy justiaiey seakojdwz Ajuno) osjep ues €
umouun umouun 2102/L12 16S'01$ 1sfjeuy Juswaiyay Jue)sISSy Wa)SAg Juswalay 09sioueI4 UBS AJUNOD/AND b4
%S L 8Loc/vi/L L102/SHL 90Z'LIS Il Jojessiuiwpy weiboid uoneloossy Juswallsy sevkoldw3 Aunod einjusp l
aseasou| aseasou) ajeq dwon ay1L sse|n Asuaby Jojesedwon uey
abejuasiad Kiejeg aAIay3 Alyuop
XaN IX8N 1ejol

Isije1dadg S991AI9S JaqUIB|

210Z Ainp

ejeq uonesuadwoy Ajyjuow jejo|

uoneldossy Juswalnay ,seakojdwz Aunoy 3s0H BJUOD



LT TZ 60 43L30S Aiyauoly doy () xipuaddy vy3D))

G jo ey abed

Jojeledwio) UoN - O/N

VY3000 9pnjoxa suoiendled [iy 310N

z y) S9Y9Je JO JaquinN
%L’ %601 MOJ2g/aA0qY YHIDID %
SeL'vS chy'vs siojesedwo) Jo uelpapy
%€'T %69 Mmojag/eAoqy VY3020 %
5.8'v$ LY9'v$ siojeredwo)) jo abelaay
OIN Aunod ejsop ejuoy g1
O/IN JousIq Aejiues AJunod ejsod ejuod [enus)  zlL
OIN 1oUIsIq 1ajeM AUNOD BJSOD BAUOD L
OIN louisia Annn edounpy Aeg jse3 oL
JIN UONeId0SSY Juswalley seakojdwg uno) einjusp 6
umouqun umowyun 11021411 0€2Z'v$ %G GE6'cS ueniuyos ] sjyouag Juswainsy WalsAs Juswalnay seakojdwz Auno) ebuel 8
Xew %z 1d0 8L0¢e/H/L 910e/veret zzZe'vs %G1 9/8'c$ UBDIUYID | sjysuag justiaiiay  uonelnossy juswalley seshoidw3g Ajunod oulpleulsag ueg L
%0G°¢ 8L02/L/L £102/2/1 GEL'YS GEL'VS 1 1sljelnads juswaiey uoneIoossy juswaley saskojdwz Auno) epawely 9
umouyun umouyun £102/52/9 8LL'v$ %86 162'v$ | Isljerdads sjysuag Juswalley wis)sAg Juswaugey seshojdw3 Auno) ojusweres S
umowyun umouyun L102/€2/9 818'v$ %86 Srr'vs 9Jel00SSY SIVIAISS JOqUISY Juswaley uoneIo0ssY Jusiaay saakojdw3 Auno) obaiq ueg ¥
2102/ 686'v$ 686'v$ UBIDIUYII | SIVIAIDG JudWAIIY uonerossy €
judwaalay ,sevkojdwg AJuno9 eyson enuon
%E-T 2102/8/01 910Z/61/01 8hy'G$ 8vp'G$ Islferoadg poddng juswainay uoneINoSSY Juswaley sedhojdw3 Auno) osiepy ues Z
umouun umouxun LL0Z/VL v6L'GS ¥6L°G$ uepluyos | sjyausg WaSAS Juswainay odspuely ueg AUnod/AID 3
asealou| asealou| ajeq Kiejeg Aiejeg 3L sse|n Aduaby Jojeredwion juey
abejuasiad Kiejeg aAnoey3 deygdo) loqge Ayuow
XN IXaN pasnfpy  jojsop doy

UBIDIUYI3] SIIIAIDG JUdWAINDY

210z Ainp

ejeq Auejes Ajyjuop doy
uoljels0ssy juawalnay sevkojdwy fjuno) e}so) enuo




LT TZ 60 [1e39Q 1yau2g || xipuaddy w4300

§ 10 g abed

'Suoiun ay} Aq passisiuipe aq o) i pue jejuaq g ‘UOISIA ‘ANdesiq uue | Buo1 ‘soueinsul 8 JO 1SOD B} SIBA0D JUNOWY ST AUno) sbuel() -§
‘stwniweud Jiayy Bugieinuuoyes Ajuaund ale Asy) asneseq GLOZ Wl papinoid siel je14 iyy3 AUNoD caje ues -z
'G10Z U1 Apnis snojasld B Wouj ale sajes 017 PUEB 80UBINSU| 8y S,yy3 Aunod obelg ues -1

‘Buipunoy g senuwoy (|80 0} 8NP sjuaUOdWOD §)1 Jo WS ey woly ARubls Asea Aew Jegunu uciiesuadwo) AUUOR 210 1 910N

OIN 260'6$ §90°L$ 192°9% TL0°L8 15v'9$ OIN OIN N 982'3$ OIN 0.18$ zee'es “dwiod Ajyjuoiy jejo |
JIN ‘e 181°2$ Sv6'LS vsez$ 1228 JIN OIN JIN 26628 OIN Sep'es £e2'es 3500 jysuag
Apaabuon
Rl e}
5% 19 0SL$ uopesuadwo) passeg
2uemoly uLopun
3suemo|jy oy
dAjensiviwpy
[3e74 vves foioraA Spzs G618 PEES 962% 88Z$ sAeplloH
sees 182¢ ¢4 cizcs 6Ev$ yees 96z3 882$ uonedep
aAea]
258 Pl o]
1as/iaLs
ols 18 1z$ .a1l
4 1$ €$ 1$ 7$ r$ (4% L
GlLs 94 8¢ UoISIp
98¢ 128 r4% 6.1$ vZL$ 691$ le3uaq
28e'T8 9z0'L$ 8Ly'LS (TR 09.'}$ 105'2$ 1p6'L$ yieaq
1GE'LS euajajeny
asueInsu|
Byo
8¢es 20€$ €628 29cs 65€$ ¥62$ 60€$ Ajunoag |eos
859 29% AKiejes 3saybiH yuop zi
€oL$ €0es qLuo Jaquay pred Y3
9918~ 824 vrl$- e 2218 124% BInULIOS SH3d padueyu
09@%¢ 55@%ST 55@%2 090%Z S5D%LT 09@%2 090@%2 SS@%T ejnuuod S¥3d
Juawainey aakojdwy
8vr's$ 88'7$ 2Ze'v$ 8LL'Y$ 0ez'v$ ¥6£'G$ SEL'YS 686'v$ Aiejes Ajyyuop doy,
O/N Islepads 2)erossy uepiuyoa | 1 1siieoeds UBIOIUYOS | OIN O/N OIN uefpluyoa | ON 1 1slleeds UBRIIYIDL L ssejp
Joddng H=RIINELS siausg s)iyauag siysusg sjysuag wewalnay SIS JUBWRINDY
Wewalnay Jaquispy Wawalney Wawainay Jswaley
Juswalley
el v ]| A el v 1sAS uoneldossy
uoeI0sSy wy ) o oy juawdiey WAAS s Aupn omsia warshs " Juawaiey uotyeroossy
BUCTITENT EYY] b P s JuswaRY Aunon JuswaInRy Kejueg
1dwz GITE] jdwg saafoldwz ledistunyy Jayep A3unon saakopdwz sy s9akojdwg
saafoldwy saafojdwiy ©JSO) BJJUOD  odsidueld ue§  Kjuno) eiso)
f3unos eamua, Aunog Aunogy Kunoo Aunoy fyunoo abuel AKeg 3se3 €}S0) BJJUCD Kaunooyk EIUOD 1B1US funon Aunod ejso) enuo)
3 EIMUaA oajely ueg obaig ueg  ouipiewag ues  ojuaLIIRS 0 o QU2 00 1Bjusg epawe|y Kousby]

UBIDIUYO3 | SADIAIDG JuaLIBINaY

10z Ainp
Ile3aQ sjyaueg

UOJBID0SSY JusWwallay ,seakojdwg Aunod ejson eiuos




LT TZ 60 A3LY0S dwo) Ajyuow jejo] |1 xipuaddy wy3dID

G Jo oy abed

Jojesedwon UON - D/N

Vd3000 3pnjoxs suolendies iy :310N

Vi sayajep Jo Jaquiny
%01 mojag/3Aaoqy Y3000 %
TL0'L8 s10jeiedwod) Jo uelpap
%1'8 mojag/aroqy vy39090 %
165°2% siojesedwod) jo abesaay
DIN uoneloossy juswalyay sesroldwy Ajuno) einjusp ¢}
OIN wusiIg Amin edpiuniy Aegiseg  zy
OIN Jousiq Jalep funo eisod enuoy L
OIN fjunog e3s0p BJYUOD 0L
2IN pusIg Aejiues Ajuno) BjsoD ejuoD [eijus) 6
XeW %Z 1d0 8L0¢/L/L 9L0e/veizL  L92'9% uepluyds| sjydusg Jusiualley  uojeIdosSSY Juswalley sesholdwz Ajuno) oulpieuleg ues 8
umouun umoupun 21021211 1S¥'9% uedIUYd8] Slousg Juswaliey we)sAg juswalyay seakojdwz Aunoy sbueip i
umouyun umouun 2102/$2/9 G90'/$ 9JBID0SSY S82IASS Jaquisy Juswalney uoneloossy juswialay seakojdwz funoy obsig ues 9
umouun umouyun /102/52/9 2.0'/% | 1sle1oads sjyauag Juswaiey wayshg Jusweley seekojdwy Auno) ojuswelsoes S
%06°¢ 8L0¢/L/.L 210272/ 021'8$ 1 1sljeloads Juswaiey uoNEIdoSSY Juswallay seshojdwz Auno) epswely 4
2102/ViL zTeies UBIDIUYIa] SIIIAIIG JusWwaInoy uoneryossy €
juswaiay ,ssafojdwiz fHunoy elso)H enuon
umouun umouxun L10Z/V/L 98/'8% ueIUYda] spjousyg Wo)sAg Juswainey oosiouel4 ueg Alunoo/AlD z
%E-T 210Z/8/0L  9102/6L/0L  Z60'6$ Isie1dadg poddng juswaijey uoneloossy juswainay seakojdw3 Ajuno) osjepy ues |
aseasdu| asealoau| ajeq dwion 931 sse|D Asuaby isojeiedwon uey
abejuaaiad Aiejeg aAnoay] Ayyuop
IXaN IX3N 1ejo)

UeIdIUYJa| SATNAIDG JuaWBIAY

210z AInp
ejeq uonesuadwog Ajlyjuo |e30L

uoieloossy jJuswalnay ,seafkojdwy fJunos eysos enuon



£1 12 60 Q3180S Alyiuow doy 1) xipuaddy vy3d0)

G jo eg abed

Jojesedwo) UoN - O/N

Vd3000 8pn|oXs suonenoes |iy ‘310N

] 8 Say2)e\ JO JIoquInN
%bL- %29 Mmoeg/eAoqy Y3000 %
161'G$ £9£'G$ siojesedwio) Jo uetpaly
%.1°8- %0°¢- mojag/enoqy vy3000 %
S12°9% 688°'S$ si0jesedwo) jo abelany
JIN Aunod eysog enuo) €L
OIN ouisig Aejueg Aunod BIse) eAuo) [eaus) gl
OIN ousIq Jojep AJunod ejso) BRU0D L)
/N pusiag Annn jediouniyt Akeg ise3 gL
umouyun umouun 1102/52/19 012's$ %86 Svl've 11 18118109dg sjysuag juswialilay welsAg Juswainey seskoldwy Ajuno) ojuswenes 6
umouun umouyun 21021111 9/£6$ %G, 100'G$ I1sijenads weibolid juswanay wesAg Juswsainay saakoidwg Ajunoy abueln 8
Xew % |d0 8L0Z/L1L 9L0e/ve/zL 118'6$ %S°L 212'S$ Islepads Juswalley  UOReI0sSY Juswaey saskoldws Aunog oulpeussg ues L
%0G°€ 8L02/1/L L10e/eiL £ov'GS £9r'G$ 11 1sljer0ads swalnay uoneIoossy Juawaley seakojdwy Auno) epswely 9
umouun umouun 210Z/82/9 8//'G$ %36 292'6% 1S1/B109dS S3VINIBS JaquISi Juswalay uoneInossy Juswalay seakojdwy Aunog obaiqg ueg o]
L102/LiL 81.1'6$ 81.'s$ 10|9suno) judwaliay Jolueg uoneossy 14
Juswainay sesfojdwy fHunos eyson enjuo)n
%E-C 2102/8/0L 9102Z/6L/0L  /8G'9% 185'9% 1shjeuy Juswaijay uoneIossYy Juswallay sesfojdw3 Ajuno) osjep ues €
umounun umowiun L102/\/L £2€'L$ €ze'L$ 1sleuy Juswiaipay JuelsISSy wiaysAg Juswainay oosiouely ues Auno/AuD 4
%St 8LOZ/VLIL L102/5L/L ¥9L'8$ %L'8 015°L$ 11 Jojessiuiwpy weiboid uoneloossy Juawasnay seafojdw3 Auno) eimuap l
asealou| asealou| ajeq Mejeg Aejeg allL sse|n Aouaby 10jesedwosy yuey
abejusaiad Aejeg 8Aldey3 deygdoy loge Alyyuon
N IXoN pasnipy  jo3sop doy

10]asSUN0Y JUdWAINDY JOIUBS

2102 Ainp

ejeqg Aiefeg Ajyjuop doj

uoleId0SSY Juawaley ,seafojdwg fjuno) e1sos esuon




LT TT 60 {1120 1y2uag |i xipuaddy 43220

G Jo qg ebey

suolun ay} Aq passisiuswpe aq o} st pue [ejuad 3 ‘UoISIA ‘ANjigesiq wia | Buo ‘soueInsul 81T JO 10D U SIBA0D JUNOWY (ST Ajunog sBuelQ -¢

‘swniweid Jiayy Bunejnuwisoyss Apuaund eie sy asnedeq §1L0Z Woly pepircid ajels je14 'y Auno) oeje ues -2
"GL0Z ul Apris snomesd e woy ale sejel 017 PUB 8oUBINSU| 81 S Y3 Aunod obeiqg ues -

‘Buipunol g seINULIO} 120 0} 8NP S)UBUOdWGD ) J0 WNs By} wouj ARYBHS Atea Aew Jequinu uonesuadwod AIYIUOW 101 BI0N

90Z°L1$ ov'olLs 6L1'8$ 5¢0'8$ 6¥9°L$ 0pg'L$ 2IN OIN OIN 165°0L$ OIN 72068 060°6$ ‘dwiod Ajyjuol ejo)
Zro'es £88'c$ We'zs 81228 (4] yov'zs OIN OIN OIN 892'c$ OIN 655°c$ zig'es 1500 Jauag
Aynabuo
RYo
174 99% 62% 0sL$ uopesuadwo) passsjeq
32UBMO||Y ULOHUN
asuemo||y ojny
aAjelsiulwpy
Sres v0e$ 682% €les 112% 8¥Z$ s 562$ oges skepiioy
0EL'LS Sor$ £€e$ 9ee$ Loe$ 8653 s 562$ oees uonedep
aAea
z5% <4200
ias/aLs
098 9L$ 6% 2% 417
€$ [43 1$ €$ L$ ¥$ ¥$ (433 Lo
S8 9% 8% UoISIA
98% 24 scLs 6418 veL$ 691$ jeyuag
[4:k4 920'L$ 8LY'LS TS 092°1$ 105'2$ e'L$ UsiesH
25/% 1GE'LS BLIAJAJRD
aueinsuj
ELlile ]
905% 80v$ 8G€$ £Tes £ees pavs 6£€$ 59¢% Kjunoag |eroog
o L3 Asejes isaybiH yuop z1
861% L0v$ quIL0D Jaquiap pied ¥3
6ves- Loz$- 982$ 6G1$- €EVS orsa 294%- ejnuLio] Sy3d padueyuy
09@%Z 090%T S5O%ST S5@%z 09@%2Z SG@%LT 090%2 09@%2 $§0%2Z einuuod S¥3d
JuaWAIRDY 3dhojdwg
o188 185'98 812'5$ 118's$ 0Lz'ss 9/£'G$ €ze'/$ £97'S$ 8125 Kiefes Alysuop doy|
1l JoensIupY 1shjeuy isijeads 11 3sle0ads islepads OIN OIN OIN 1shleuy OIN Il siepeds 10[]9SUNOY juswallay Joluss dhLL ssejd|
welbold swamay Jswaney syeusg weJboid Jswaley wewamey
J8quapy wawaley Wewaunay Wesissy
swainey
) v ne; v el A A uonerdossy
el v o > wajsisg wAsAs Jousia :
JuswaInay JuswIney JudwaIney judwalney juawaInay Juswaiyey PwWIsIa Annn puIsia funod JuswaIgay faejuesg Juswaiey uoneoossy
saakojdwg saafkojdwg saakojdwg saakojdwg ledidiunyy Jajep Ajunod saafojdwg JuawaLnRy saakojdwy
seafojdwz saakojdwz BJS0) BJJUOD  09SIOURI4 uBS  AJUno) BIS0D
funon funoy funoy fQunon feg jseg B)S0D BJUOD fyunop £funo) e3son esjuod
Ajunod eanjuap Kunog abuesg funog/ANy  eajuod jenuan
odjel ues obaiq ues  oulplewag ueg  ojusWiRIIRS epawely Kouoby,

10]9SUNOY) JUBWIBIIAY JOIUSS)

L10Z Ainp
jlejoq sjyeuag
uoieINOSSY Juawainey ,seakojdwzg Aunos e3so) euon



£T 12 60 A3140S dwo)d Ajyauc jejo] §) xipuaddy vy3D0D

G Jo 26 abey

Jojesedwo)) UON - D/N

V3000 8pnoxs suoie|nd|ed |Iy 310N

8 Sayoje JO JaquinN
%L°G mojag/eroqy vy39990 %
0.5°‘8$ si0jesedwod jo uelpaly
%€°0- Mmojag/enoqy V3000 %
2LL'6$ si0jesedwio) jo abelany
J/IN wusig Aln [ediiuniy Aegiseg ¢
OIN ousiqg Jejep Auno eisod enjuod gL
JIN Aunog eysop ejuony )y
2N oumsig Aepueg Aunog eyso) ejuo) [elusy QL
umowun umousun 2102/52/9 619'/$ 11 Isle10adg sjysuag juswalney wajsAg juswaley seakojdwg Auno) ojuswesoes 6
umouyun umouun L102/212 ove8'L$ sijeioadg weibold juswainey waysAg Juswaay seakoldwg Aunos ebueip 8
XeW %z IdD 8L0¢/L/1L 910¢/ve/cL  Ge0'es Isijeloads Juswaiay  UOREIN0SSY Juswalay seskodws Aunod oulpieuisg ues L
umouyun umouun 1102/€2/9 6lL1'8% Isije1dadg S90S JaquIB|y JUaLWBINeY uoReInosSsy juswainsy seakojdwg Ajunon obaiq ueg 9
%05°¢ 810¢/L/L 21021211 zz0'6% [1 3s1|e1oadg Juswaiyey uonerossy juswallay sesfojdw3 Aunoy epswey S
210Z/ViL 060°'6$ 40|3SUNOY JUdWBINIY JoluUsg uoneioossy 14
juswaInay seshkojdwz AJuno) eyso) enuo)
%€-C £102/8/0L  9L02/6L/0L  QLV'OLS 1shjeuy Juswainey uoneroossy Juswalay saskojdwz Ajuno) osjel ues €
umouxun umouun L1021 L6S'0L$ 1sAjeuy juswsalljay juesissy WolsAS juswalay 0dsiouel4 ueg AJunon/AnD b4
%S 8L0Z/v L/ 2102/5L/L 902'LL$ il Joyensiuwpy weiboud uofeloossy juawalney seakojdw3 Aunoy einjusp L
asealou) asealou| ajeq dwoy 3} ssej) Aduaby i0jesedwon yuey
abejuaaieyd Aiejeg ETVIBETTE] Alyauop
IXSN XeN lejoL

J0[9SUN0Y JUBWAINIY JOIUag

.10z Ainp
ejeg uonesuadwon A|Yjuo jejot

uopjeloossy jusawainey ,ssshojdwg fjunos eyson euon



Total Compensation Study - Final Report
Conira Costa Employees’ Retfirement Association

Appendix i

Proposed Salary Range Schedule



Appendix Il
Contra Costa County Employee’s Retirement Association
Salary Schedule

November 2015
Monthly Salary Range Hourly Salary Range
Salary Range # | oo 1] Step 2] Step 3] Step 4 [ Step 5] [Step 1] Step 2] Step 3] Step 4[Step 5
1 3410 | 3580 | 3759 | 3947 | 4145 19.67 2066 2169 2277 2391
2 3493 | 3668 | 3851 | 4043 | 4246 2015 2116 2222 2333 2449
3 3580 | 3759 | 3947 | 4145 | 4352 2066 2169 2277 2391 2511
4 3668 | 3851 | 4043 | 4246 | 4458 21.16 . 22.22 . 23.33 . 24.49 . 25.72
5 3759 | 3947 | 4145 | 4352 | 4569 2169 2277 2391 2511 26.36
6 3851 | 4043 | 4246 | 4458 | 4681 2222 2333 2449 2572 27.00
7 3947 | 4145 | 4352 | 4569 | 4798 2277 2391 2511 26.36 27.68
8 4043 | 4246 | 4458 | 4681 | 4915 23.33 . 24.49 g 25.72 i 27.00 ; 28.35
9 4145 | 4352 | 4569 | 4798 | 5038 2391 2511 26.36 27.68 29.06
10 4246 | 4458 | 4681 | 4915 | 5161 2449 2572 2700 2835 2977
1 4352 | 4569 | 4798 | 5038 | 5290 2511 2636 27.68 29.06 30.52
12 4458 | 4681 | 4915 | 5161 | 5419 25.72 g 27.00 ’ 28.35 ; 29.77 . 31.26
13 4569 | 4798 | 5038 | 5290 | 5554 26,36 27.68 29.06 30.52 32.04
14 4681 | 4915 | 5161 | 5419 | 5690 27.00 2835 29.77 31.26 32.82
15 4798 | 5038 | 5290 | 5554 | 5832 27.68 29.06 30.52 32.04 33.65
16 4915 | 5161 | 5419 | 5690 | 5974 28.35 i 29.77 . 31.26 i 32.82 . 34.47
17 5038 | 5290 | 5554 | 5832 | 6123 29.06 30.52 32.04 3365 3533
18 5161 | 5419 | 5690 | 5974 | 6273 2977 31.26 3282 3447 36.19
19 5290 | 5554 | 5832 | 6123 | 6430 30.52 32.04 3365 3533 37.09
20 5419 | 5690 | 5974 | 6273 | 6586 31.26 i 32.82 ; 34.47 ; 36.19 ; 38.00
21 5554 | 5832 | 6123 | 6430 | 6751 3204 3365 3533 37.09 3895
22 5690 | 5974 | 6273 | 6586 | 6916 3282 3447 36.19 38.00 39.90
23 5832 | 6123 | 6430 | 6751 | 7089 33.65 3533 37.09 3895 40.90
24 5974 | 6273 | 6586 | 6916 | 7261 34.47 . 36.19 . 38.00 . 39.90 . 41.89
25 6123 | 6430 | 6751 | 7089 | 7443 3533 37.09 38.95 4090 4294
26 6273 | 6586 | 6916 | 7261 | 7625 36.19 38.00 3990 41.89 43.99
27 6430 | 6751 | 7089 | 7443 | 7815 37.09 3895 4090 4294 4509
28 6586 | 6916 | 7261 | 7625 | 8006 38.00 ’ 39.90 ’ 41.89 \ 43.99 " 46.19
29 6751 | 7089 | 7443 | 7815 | 8206 3895 4090 4294 4509 4734
30 6916 | 7261 | 7625 | 8006 | 8406 39.90 4189 4399 46.19 4850
31 7089 | 7443 } 7815 | 8206 | 8616 40.90 42.94 4509 47.34 4971
32 7261 | 7625 | 8006 | 8406 | 8826 41.89 . 43.99 . 46.19 . 48.50 g 50.92
33 7443 | 7815 | 8206 | 8616 | 9047 4294 4509 4734 4971 5219
34 7625 | 8006 | 8406 | 8826 | 9268 4399 46.19 4850 5092 53.47
35 7815 | 8206 | 8616 | 9047 | 9499 4509 47.34 4971 5219 54.80
36 8006 | 8406 | 8826 | 9268 | 9731 46.19 ; 48.50 g 50.92 . 53.47 i 56.14
37 8206 | 8616 | 9047 | 9499 | 9974 47.34 4971 5219 5480 57.54
38 8406 | 8826 | 9268 | 9731 | 10218 48.50 50.92 5347 56.14 58095
39 8616 | 9047 | 9499 | 9974 | 10473 49.71 5219 5480 57.54 6042
40 8826 | 9268 | 9731 | 10218 | 10729 50.92 ; 53.47 . 56.14 i 58.95 ; 61.90
41 9047 | 9499 | 9974 | 10473 | 10997 5219 5480 5754 6042 63.44
42 9268 | 9731 | 10218 | 10729 11265 5347 56.14 58.95 61.90 64.99
43 9499 | 9974 [ 10473 | 10997 | 11547 5480 5754 6042 63.44 6661
44 9731 | 10218 | 10729 | 11265| 11828 56.14 . 58.95 ; 61.90 y 64.99 ; 68.24
45 9974 | 10473 | 10997 | 11547 | 12124 5754 60.42 63.44 66.61 69.95
46 10218 [ 10729 | 11265 | 11828 | 12420 5895 61.90 6499 68.24 71.65
47 10473 | 10997 | 11547 | 12124 | 12730 6042 6344 66.61 6995 73.44
48 10729 | 11265 | 11828 | 12420 | 13041 61.90 , 64.99 " 68.24 ' 71.65 . 75.23
49 10997 | 11547 | 12124 | 12730 | 13367 6344 6661 69.95 7344 77.11
50 11265 11828 | 12420 | 13041 | 13693 64.99 68.24 7165 7523 79.00
51 11547 | 12124 | 12730 13367 | 14035 66.61 6995 7344 77.11 8097
52 11828 | 12420 | 13041 | 13693 | 14377 68.24 . 71.65 : 75.23 ’ 79.00 . 82.95
53 12124 | 12730 | 13367 | 14035 | 14737 69.95 7344 77.11 8097 8502
54 12420 | 13041 | 13693 | 14377 | 15096 7165 7523 79.00 8295 87.09
55 12730 | 13367 | 14035 | 14737 | 15474 7344 77.11 80.97 85.02 89.27
56 13041 | 13693 | 14377 | 15096 | 15851 75.23 ” 79.00 i 82.95 i 87.09 : 91.45
57 13367 | 14035 | 14737 | 15474 | 16247 77.11 80.97 85.02 89.27 9373
58 13693 | 14377 | 15096 | 15851 | 16643 79.00 8295 87.09 9145 96.02
59 14035 | 14737 | 15474 | 16247 | 17060 80.97 8502 89.27 9373 98.42
60 14377 | 15096 | 15851 | 16643 | 17476 82.95 Y 87.09 . 91.45 i 96.02 I100.82
61 14737 | 15474 | 16247 | 17060 | 17913 85.02 89.27 9373 9842 103.34
62 15096 | 15851 | 16643 | 17476 | 18349 87.09 9145 96.02 100.82 105.86
63 15474 | 16247 [ 17060 | 17913 | 18808 89.27 93.73 98.42 103.34 108.51
64 15851 | 16643 | 17476 | 18349 | 19267 91.45 ; 96.02 ’ 100,82l 105.86I 111.16
65 16247 | 17060 | 17913 | 18808 | 19749 93.73 98.42 103.34 108.51 113.93
66 16643 | 17476 | 18349 | 19267 | 20230 96.02 100.82 105.86 111.16 116.71
67 17060 | 17913 | 18808 | 19749 | 20736 9842 103.34 108.51 113.93 119.63
68 17476 | 18349 | 19267 | 20230 | 21242 100.82' 105.86‘ 111.16' 116.71 i 122.55
69 17913 | 18808 | 19749 | 20736 | 21773 103.34 108.51 113.93 119.63 125.61
70 18349 | 19267 | 20230 | 21242 | 22304 105.86 111.16 116.71 122,55 128.68
71 18808 | 19749 | 20736 | 21773 | 22861 108.51 113.93 119.63 125.61 131.89
72 19267 | 20230 | 21242 | 22304 | 23419 111.16 116.71 12255 128.68 135.11
73 19749 | 20736 | 21773 | 22861 | 24004 113.93 119.63 125.61 131.89 138.49
74 20230 | 21242 | 22304 | 23419 | 24590 116.71 122.55 128.68 135.11 141.87

Page 1 of 1 10/18/2017 CCCERA Appendix lll Salary Range Schedule Effective 7.1.17.xls



Total Compensation Study - Final Report
Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association

Appendix IV

Salary Range Placement Recommendations



SIX'£1-91-8 pajuasaiday juswoaoeld abuey Alejeg Al Xipuaddy vy3ID0D

UeIoluyoa) S90IAISS JuSWaINRY MOJR] %G Juswubly [eusiul| %6 9L- SPL'v$ L 686'7$ isijeroadsg soWO
JUBISISSY SAIINDBXT MOJR] %0Z Juswublly |eulsiu) %€ 0 $56'G$ €l 8€6'GS juBlsissy aAjelsILiLpY
Sjel-A ‘Juswooe|d abues pue 1axiep %S0~ 6L¥'G$ 2l Gle'6$ %€’} oy'GS uedIuyda ] Bupunosoy|
Sjes-A luediuyos] Bununoddy sAoqe %G| uswublly [eulsiu) %6V~ €42'9% 8l ¥65°9%$ Isljeloadg Bununoooy
ajer-A usweoe|d abuel pue jxien]  %8ZL- FAToR € 162V %0} 686'v$ UeIoIuYD3 ] SOINBS JUSWaINSY
ajes-A uswooe|d sbuel pue yasien|  %z'g- 6L¥'SS zL G/e'6$ %09 812'G$ Isi|eroadg saolARg Jequisiy
SIETR JSIE0o0s SSOIAIDS ) ; g

JQUIBIN BA0QR %G| Juswubie Jusind uleulew JUaWUBIly jeulsu) %67 €Lcos 8l v65 9% 1sieiaadg ABojoulyoe) eleq
J10]3SUNO0Y JUBWBNIDY J0IUSS MOJaq %0 ‘Juswublly |euisiul %8°0- GL6'v% 8 1G66'v$ Jojdsuno?) juawalnay
ajes-A ‘Juswaoe|d sbuel pue joyiep %Z'G- 6L'S$ Zl 26£'s$ %/1'G 812'6$ Jojasuno) Juswaiay Joluag
oouaseplg Asejeg ﬂ..m:mm_ juswede|d UBIP3 Kiejeg aplL sse|n

uadied  Alyyuopy  Aiejeg 1oeN dwoy Alyyuop

ajeuoney _
wnuwixep pasodoid lejol wnwixep
pasodoid woudy %, juaun)
L10¢ AN

pajuasaiday - suoepuawWWIondy ase|d abuey pasodoid
uoneIdosSsYy jJuawaunay ,saakojdwz AJuno e3son esuon

Al xipuaddy || awnjop




Meeting Date
10/25/17

S%IE%%A‘ ‘ ‘ ERA Agenda Item
COUNTY #7

Employees’ Retirement Association

MEMORANDUM

Date: October 25, 2017

To: Board of Retirement
G?lﬂ Strohl, Chief Executive Officer

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: State Association of County Retirement Systems 2017 Legislative Proposal

Background

The State Association of County Retirement Systems (SACRS) Legislative Committee is
recommending one legislative proposal for SACRS sponsorship for 2017. The proposal will be
voted on by the SACRS member systems at the Business Meeting of the SACRS Fall
Conference, Friday, November 17, 2017. SACRS member systems may vote to support, oppose,
or take no position on the legislative proposals.

The legislative proposal to be considered for SACRS Sponsorship in 2017 is as follows:

Definition of “Surviving Spouse”. This proposal would add a provision to the County
Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL) defining “surviving spouse” to include only a
spouse who is legally married to the member, is neither divorced nor legally separated from the
member, and who meets all other requirements of CERL pertaining to the length of the marriage
and the spouse’s age at the time of the member’s death.

The SACRS Legislative Committee recommends that SACRS sponsor this legislation to define
“surviving spouse” so retirement systems are not confused by conflicting case law. A recent
court case concluded that a legally separated spouse qualified for a survivor continuance as the
member’s surviving spouse. This opinion is contrary to the practices of at least eight CERL
systems and three prior decisions issued by the Superior Court in Santa Barbara, Contra Costa
and Ventura counties.

Impact on CCCERA: This proposal would provide CCCERA with clarity regarding whether a
legally separated spouse qualifies for a survivor continuance as the member’s surviving spouse.
The proposal would clarify conflicting case law on this issue.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org



SRCCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

Note: two other legislative proposals were submitted to the SACRS Legislative Committee, but
the Committee has voted not to recommend SACRS sponsorship for these proposals:

1. Legislative proposal requiring a specific statutory time limit of four months in which to
file a disability application. The four months would run from the date the applicant
knows or should have known that his or her illness or injury has become permanent;
and

2. Legislative proposal applying to all twenty CERL system the statute that excludes
assistant administrators and chief investment officers from civil service.

Recommendation

Consider and take possible action to direct the CCCERA Board voting delegate to vote in
support of the 2017 SACRS legislative proposal at the November 2017 SACRS Conference.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Page 2



CCCERA Board Meetings 2018

Meeting Date
10/25/17

Agenda item
#8

Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|{Mo| Tu We| Th| Fr | Sa Su|Mo|Tu |We|Th| Fr | Sa
Hl2|3|4]5]|6 11213 1| 2 W9
718 9 S 11 ] 12 | 13 4 516 718 9 | 10 1718 9 110
141 H |16 |17 18] 19| 20 11 (12113 @z 15| 16 | 17 11112 1 13 B 15 | 16 | 17
211 22 | 23 @ 25§ 26 | 27 18| H!l20|21]22)23| 24 18119201 21|22 23| 24
28 | 29 | 30 | 31 25 | 26 | 27 W] 25126 |27 Bz 29 | 30 | 31
15 Morin Luther King i ey 19 -Presidents Day
Su|{Mo| Tu|We|Th| Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo|Tu [We|Th | Fr | Sa
2 6 7 1 2 314165 1 2
8 9 13 1 14 6 7 8 10| 11| 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
151 16 20 | 21 1314 | - 2 19 10 {11 | 12 Bl 14 | 15 | 16
22 ¢ 23 27 | 28 20121 | 22 Q= 24 | 25| 26 17 118 | 19 21 | 22 | 23
29 1 30 | i 27 H {29 30| 31 24 | 25| 26 = 28 | 29 | 30
28 - Memorial Day
Fr | Sa Su|Mo|Tu|We|Th| Fr | Sa Su Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa
6 7 314 1
13 | 14 5 6 7 10 | 11 2 | H 7 8
20 21 12 13| 14 | 15 17 | 18 9 1|10 14 | 15
27 | 28 19 [ 20| 21 Y 24 | 25 16 | 17 21| 22
26| 27 | 28 31 23 | 24 28 | 29
4 - Independence Day 30
3- Labor Day
November
Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th| Fr | Sa Su{Mo| Tu|We|Th| Fr | Sa Su{Mo|Tu |{We|Th| Fr | Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1
718 9 S 11112 | 13 4 5 6 B 8 9 110 21 314}15]6 718
14115116 | 17 | 18 1 19| 20 1M1 H S 17 9 |10 ] 11 B 13114} 15
21| 22 | 23 =0 25 | 26 | 27 18 | 10 M= 21 | H | H | 24 16|17 | 18 1797 20} 21| 22
28 |1 29 | 30 | 31 25126 27| 28] 29| 30 23124 H |26} 27| 28} 29

E Board Meeting

12 - Veterans Day
22 and 23 - Thanksgiving

= sACRS

30 | 31
25 - Christmas Day Observed

CALAPRS - General Assembly

Eff. 10.25.17



8:30 am

9:00 am

9:10 am

9:30 am

10:30 am

10:45 am

12:00 pm

1:15 pm

2:15 pm
2:30 pm
Roundtable

3:30 pm

CALAPRS

EDUCATION - COMMUNICATION « NETWORKING

Meeting Date

10/25/17
Agenda Item
#9a.

California Association of Public Retirement Systems

TRUSTEES’ ROUNDTABLE

Friday, October 27, 2017
Doubletree by Hilton San Jose
2050 Gateway Place, San Jose, CA

AGENDA

Continental Breakfast

Welcome and Introduction

Anne Casscells, Aetos Capital, LLC

Wolfram Klingler, XTP Implementation Services, LLC
Eyal Bilgal, ThirdAct

System Updates and Roundtable Discussion of Current Issues
Macro Perspective on Fed balance sheet and government
actions

Anne Casscells, Aetos Capital, LLC

Break

Implementation Efficiency and Cost Optimization in Delegated
Investment Management.

Wolfram Klingler, XTP Implementation Services, LLC

Lunch

Fintech in Real Estate
Eyal Bilgal

Break
Topic discussion, practical application, next steps.

Selection of coordinator for the Spring 2018 CALAPRS

Adjournment

CONTACT US
575 Market Street, Suite 2125, San Francisco, CA 94105
P:415-764-4860 F: 415-764-4915
register@calaprs.org www.calaprs.org




NCPERS: National Conference on Public Employee Retirement Systems Page 2 of 3

Home (index.asp)  Educational Conferences (/conferences)  Legislative Conference (/legisiative) - Print This Page
Meeting Date
10/25/17

Legislative Conference Agenda lrem

The NCPERS Legislative Conference is the premier conference for public fund trustees and plan
administrators, highlighting the issues on Capitol Hill and in federal regulatory agencies that affect pension
funds today.

Past conferences have brought senior administration officials, Members of Congress and Washington insiders
to help educate fund members on the critical issues affecting public pensions and equip them with the tools
needed to deal with these issues effectively and meet-face-to-face with their elected leaders on the Hill.

Fedededededdedokdedddekdddoddekdkkkdkkdddkkdddk kR kdkkkhhhkdkhkkdhihkrhihdedddkkkhhirkidhikirhidididid

-

2018 NCPERS

Legislative Conference

January 28 - 30,2018 | Capital Hilten Hotel | Washington, DC

Follow Us an Twitter — W #LegConf18

2018 Legislative Conference
January 28 - 30
Washington, DC

2018 Call for Proposals/Speakers (http://www.ncpers.org/files/Conference%20Docs/Legislative%
20Conf/2018/Call%20for%20Speakers%202017.pdf)

Submit your presenation propsal by Monday, November 20 to be consider for a speaking slot at the 2018
Legislative Conference. Click here (http://www.ncpers.org/files/Conference%20Docs/Annual%
20Conference/2018/Call%20for%20Speakers_Sample.pdf) to view a sample submission.

Online Registration (Opening Soon)

To register online, please have your login credentials handy. If you have forgotten your login credentials CLICK
HERE (http://www.ncpers.org/assoc_forgot.asp) to recover this information. If you are new to your organization
and do not have an NCPERS membership profile, please send an email to registration@ncpers.org
(mailto:registration@ncpers.org) or call 202-624-1456.

Hotel Reservations (https://aws.passkey.com/go/NCPERS2018)

Book your hotel stay at the Capitol Hilton Hotel (http://www3.hilton.com/en/hotels/district-of-columbia/capital-
hilton-DCASHHH/index.htmi). Cali 1-800-HILTONS and use code NCPE to receive the discounted room rate.
Reservation deadline is Friday, January 12.

http://www.ncpers.org/legislative 10/13/2017



	Agenda
	Item 3
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9

